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Summary

With the Group's new global operating model successfully launched
and the four regional trading structures in place, the last year has
seen change and progress in equal measure with steadly improving
commercial results

As the future unfolds, we are reviewing and evolving the essential
elements of our business strategy, fine-tuning them N response to
new challenges and new opportunities, ensuring we not only satisfy
the changing needs of our consumers but also build profitability in
line with our Five Year Plan

This annual report looks back at the last 12 months and looks
forward as we pursue our ambition to become the leading everyday
global footwear brand the first choice for style with comfort
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results AT A GLANCE

2014 2013

Group turnover £1,541 0m  £1,4606m
Group operating profit! £128 4m £1223m
Basic earnings per ordinary share? 149 3p 137 8p
Dvidends per ordinary share —Intenm 31st January 2014 11.0p 10 0p

—final 31st January 2014 {payable Apnl 2014) 330p 300p
Net borrowings (€59 7m) (£393m})
Met bowowings/equity 11 8% 83%
Return on capital employed’ 19 3% 203%
1 Bafore exceptional tarns
2 After axcepiional items
Basic earnings per ordinary share Group turnover from continung
after exceptional tems (pence) operations (Em)
2010 1016 | 1 2010 1,1735 L2777~ ]
2011 1266 [T~ ] 201 1,2813 EERRI W T
2012 1305 B AN 2012 1,3981 E¥FETIGTE vy |
2013 1378 % e =r ] 2013 14606 Be wafesr = o .
2014 1493 [ - 2014 1,541 0 E =~ i ]

Pre-tax profits after
exceptional items {£m)

Return on capital employed
before exceptional items (%)

2010 851 [ 2010 276 |
2017 1087 = = ] 201 252 | VS
2012 1061 L - T ] 2012 223 =73
2013 1136 [ H 1 2013 203 3
2014 1198 [ 2 B H 2014 193

Group turnover from continuiNg

operations by region (%)

Total regional controllable profits (96)

UK & ROt 418 I UK & ROI 27 ]
Amencas 406 NN Amencas 299 ]
Europe 95 W Europe 128 1A

Asia Pacific 81 1 Asla Pacific 146 [




sumimary OF TRADING RESULTS

Group Turnover

2014 2013

£m tm
UK & ROI 644 6 6235
Amencas 6259 588 3
Europe 1455 143 4
Asia Pacific 1250 1054
Total 1,541 0 1,480 6
Group Operating Profit
2014 2013
£m £m
UK & RO 1031 94 8
Amencas 722 821
Eurcpe 308 352
Asia Pacific 353 294
Total regional controllable profit 241.4 2415
Group and enabling overheads (114 3) (109 2}
Group trading profit 127.1 1323
Group footwear items 31 {02
Group footwear profits 130 2 1321
Non-footwear tems {1 8) ©8)
Group operating profit 1284 1223
Comparatives in the table above have been restated to reflect the new regienal structura
Group footwear items compnse central Group overheads and gains o kisses on currency contracts
Non-{patwear items compnsa halding campany actaaty and cantral pension Gosts
Key profit drivers of divisional trading results
£m
January 2013 group operating profit 1223 I
Increase n parage volume sold 774 £ o rear |
Decrease in average selling pnce (18 4) ]
Increase in other product costs (37 6) ]
Decrease n brand marketing investrnent 27 i
Increase in regional overheads (24 2) I
Increase in group and enabling overheads 51) [
Decrease In group footwear item costs 33 |3
Decrease In non footwear item costs 80 ]
January 2014 group operating profit 1284 ]
W Pofit ] Positve vanances Jll Negatve vanances 00 250 500 750 100 0 1250 150 0 1750 200 0

Profit Em

The diagram depicts the vaniances, both positive and negative, that drive the movement from the January 2013 group operating profit to the January 2014 group
operating profit




suminary OF TRADING RESULTS CONTINUED

Key profit drivers of regional trading results

UK & ROI Region £m
January 2013 regional controllable profit 948 ]
Decrease in parage volume sold (1 6} I
Increase in average selling pnce 139
Increase in other product costs (19 1
Increase n brand marketing investrment €3 |
Increase in other region overheads (18 1
January 2014 regional controllable profit 1031 ]
00 200 400 800 8340 1000 1200 1400 1600
Profit Em
Amenicas Region £m
January 2013 regional controllable profit 821 I
Increase in parrage valume sold 528 [ .
Decrease m average seling price (28 4 ]
Increase n other product costs (24 1) [ ]
Decrease In brand marketing investment 43 4]
Increase In other region overheads (14 5} [ ]
January 2014 regional controllable profit 722
a0 200 400 800 800 1000 1200 1400 1600
Profit £m
Europe Region £m
January 2013 regional controllable profit 352 [ ]
Decrease in parrage volume sold (2 8) [ |
Increase n average selling price 00 |
Decrease in other product costs 10 I
Increase In brand marketng investment GO |
Increase in other region overheads 2 8) |
January 2014 regional controllable profit 308 I
00 200 400 600 800 1000 1200 1400 1600
Profit £m
Asia Pacific Region £m
January 2013 regional controllable profit 29.4 I
Increase n parage volume sold 290 | .
BDecrease in average selling pnce (3 8} [ ]
tncrease in other product costs (12 5} ]
Increase n brand marketing investment (14} |
Increase in other region overheads 54 [ ]
January 2014 regional controllable profit 353 ]
I Profit [ ] Positve vanances [l Negairve vanances 2 e 00 0 €00 80 1000 1200 1400 1600
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chairman’s

I write to you for the first time as Chairman of the Board
and it gives me great pleasure to report that Group profits
before interest rose by 5 1% to £127 8m Group turnover
Increased by 5 5% to £1 54 billon Return on sales was
margnally below the previous year at 8 3% Inayear

of significant change for the Group following the formal
establishment of the new global operating modet these
results represent further solid progress

The four regions’ performances were somewhat mixed
The UK and RO! performed very strongly aganst the
backdrop of an improving economic landscape, dus
prmanly 1o a higher mix of adult full price sales and a very
strong childrens back-to-school offer In Asia Pacific our
broadening distribution and increased brand presence
drove a profit ncrease of 20% The economic picture I
this vast, geographically diverse region 1s, as you might
expect, varned In this context, we are also mindful that India
and China's GDP rates are slowing while the Middle East
remains unstable in some areas and quite stable in others
Generally, however, the economic conditions in the Middle
East were favourable for Clarks
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Europe and the Americas performed less strongly
Europe emerged durning the year frorn recession and our
planned reduction in profits dunng 2013 matenalised as
we concentrated on setting up strong foundations for
growth n 2014 and beyond In the Americas a mixture
of operational challenges causinga bulld-up of nventory
in the first half of the year and an extremely promotional
consumer environment resulted ina sharp decline in
average prices and margns Managernent has taken
actions to reverse these unwanted developments in our
Amencas business So, we lock to a stronger performance
In our Americas business in the upcoming year

The consolidated growth Clarks Group has demonstrated
this past year s a result of our dversified, global trading
model The various routes to market within our four distinct
and diverse regions has shown that underperformance

in one part of our Group can be ¢ffset by stronger
performances in other areas of the world

The Group’s underlying strategy has been in place for
some time The key components of the strategy 1s to

burld the Clarks global brand, to improve the qualty of
earnings and to dnve sustainable growth in key markets
through a consistent offer of footwear grounded n style
and comfort drawn from innovation in product, marketing
and processes Details on how these parts of our strategy
are effecting change within the business Is more fully
descnbed in Melissa Potter's report on pages 12 to 18

| would like to reassure you that while much of the strategic
work to date is foundational and structural, it has been an
integrat part of our plan to realise the growth targets that
we have set for the Clarks Group going farward Indeed,
the formal launch of the global operating model at the start
of 2013 1s the key enabler for a successful execution of the
strategy over the coming years




QOur results iIndicate that we are on the nght course Group
turnover of £1 54bn increased by & 5% and resultant Group
profit before nterest rose 5 1% to £127 8m Profit after tax
rose 8 3% to £88 7m, while earnings per share rose strongly
10 149 3 pence per share —an 8 3% or 11 5 pence Increase
on last year's 137 8 pence per share

Capital employed rose by £62 7m or 10 4% and resultant
return on caprtal employed reduced marginally to 19 3%
from 20 3% in the previous year Equity shareholder's funds
increased by £34 6m or 7 3% to £505 8m

The Group's net borrowings position of £59 7mwas

£20 4m higher than last year’s £39 3m Gearnngof 11 8%

1s marginally higher than last year's 8 3% but remains at a
healthy level, as the Group remans strongly cash generative

The business strategy and future growth potential is reliant
on continued high levels of capital and revenue investments
Investment in marketing costs to drive ncreased consumer
demand equated to 3 3% of Group turnover, in ine with
last year but representing an incremental £1 3m investment
over 2013 Key caprttal investments duning 2013 included
the final elements of SAP In Amenca to complete the global
SAP footprint, the investments associated with supporting
the commissioning phase of the new distnbution centre

In America, and, the continued investrment in the UK and
America retal estates, in the form of both store refits and
selected store openings

A key area of nvestment over the next two years necessary
to dnve growth will be the replacement of vanous cnline
systems platforms with one new global online platform

This reaches beyond operational efficiencies and is directly
tied to explaiting new digital capabilities and technologies,
particularly for a robust online business Solid growth

IS planned in Europe and Asia It will be achigved along
more familar lines where the Group will continue to invest
IN business models that result in greater control over the
development of the Clarks brand in these key markets

Peter Davies resigned as Chairman on 6th December
2013 Iwould like to thank Peter on behalf of the Board

for his leadership, his nsight and his counsel dunng his
charmanship over the previous seven and a half years

~a penod of considerable change and unprecedented
commercial success in the business Other than my own
appontment o the position of Chairman, there were no
other changes to the Board composition The recruitment
for my successor as an independent Non-Executive
Director 1s underway Dunng the year the Board approved
the establishment of a permanent Nominations Commuttee
with responsibitity to recommend candidatas for high level
posittons on the Board as well as to develop appropnate
succession planning at the Board level Detalls, along with
the Group's corporate governance standards can be found
on pages 26 to 29

The expectation for 2014 1s that the key markets and
economies in which the Group trades will provide shghtly
better economic conditions for growth The Wholesale
orders in Europe and the UK for our current Spnng/Summer

2014 season are showing goed single digit ncreases and

in Asia Pacrfic growth rates enjoyed in 2013 look set to
continue Economically, the Amertcas reman a difficult
market on a macro level but a promising one on a micro
level where our considerable iInvestments position us well to
regan lost ground and to fully recover the confidence of cur
wholesale customers and expand our direct retal business
network through on-time deliveries and compeliing product

Excellent progress to date has been made in transforming
Clarks into a truly global shoe brand We am to continue
investing for the long term health of the Group whilst
producing steady growth in turnover and profitability over
the short to medium term

The Board continues to place importance on enhancing

an environment conducive to an avalable and accessible
market for qualified sharehalders to buy or sell shares in the
Clarks Group One sure way to reach this goal 1s to build a
strong growing business where the share value continues to
appreciate In accordance with the Articles, share valuations
are prepared twice a year by an independent firm of
chartered accountants In May 2013 the shares were valued
at £8 80 and n September 2013 at £9 50 The share price
has nsen consistently from £6 25 in 2004 to £9 50 today
This mportant development explains, in large part, that the
demand for the purchase of shares outstnps the supply of
shares avallable for sale It makes for a very satisfactory share
market and indicates the underying strength of the business

In May 2013, 214,721 Ordinary Shares were offered for
sale at £8 80 and all shares were sold

In October 2013, 144,577 Ordinary Shares were offered for
sale at £9 50 and all shares were soid

On 30th June 2013, 91,736 shares were appropriated for
participants in the C&J Clark Limited All Employee Share
Incentwe Plan The Board places value on continuing this
program for our employees From time to time we will
authonse purchases on the share market or recommend
to the shareholders to authonse stock Issues to mest the
requirements of employee share incentive plan

Lastly, the final dvidend due for payment in Apnl 2014

has been set by the Board at 33 0 pence per share

On a per share basis, together with the interim payment of
11 O pence, this will make a combined annual dvidend of
44 0 pence and represents a 10 0% increase on last year
At this level, the dwvidend is covered 3 4 tmes wiich 1s well
below the coverage offered by companies the sze of the
Clarks Group elsewhere in the U K It is not only prudent but
also a sign of our financial strength

I would iike to close with anote of gratitude to the
shareholders for giving me the opportunity to be your
Charman ook forward to Clarks future with optimism,
determmnation and dedication

THOMAS J O’'NEILL
CHAIRMAN
215T MARCH 2014




chief executive’s

OVERVIEW OF GROUP PERFORMANCE

Taken as a whale this has been a year of profound
change for the Group February 2013 saw the formal
launch of the Group’s new global operating modei,
including the establishment of our four regional trading
structures In May we completed the last major phase

In our programme 1o implement SAP technology as a
foundation of our business systems worldwide, when

we completed a successful go-ive in North America

In the second half we made a number of sigruficant
changes to the composihion of the leadership team in

our Amencas business in an attermpt to maximise cur
commercial performance in the face of a tough, highly
promotional trading environment All of these factors have
challenged our teams to adapt to new demands, whether
by adopting new processes and ways of working, finding
new ways of collaborating efiectively togethsr to achieve
our commercial objectives or harnessing the potential

of unfamiiar technology For all the immediate challenges
| am pleased to be able to report that the Group has
contnued to make sound progress in delivering its
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short-term financial targets, posting further good
improvements on the previcus year in both turnover
and operating profits

Group turnover for the year increased by 5 5% to

£1 54bn This improvement was driven by a nse of

5 6% (2 8m parrs) in the volume of units sold, although

2 0m pairs of the increase arase in the Americas region
and drew heavily on the imperative to iquidate excess
inventory Although the parrage volume base in our UK
and Republic of lreland {(ROI) business remained flat
against the previous year, turnover edged upwards by

3 4% on the strength of a continued enhancement in
average pnces as we focused on opbimsing our full-price
mix It was once agan the overseas markets which
achieved the fastest growth rates Qur Asia Pacific region
was the star performer, delivenng an overall step increase
of 26 5% n pars and 18 6% n turnover, which featured
very strong performances in key growth markets such as
China, India, South East Asia and the Middle East despite
softer economic conditions and seme adverse currency
pressures In the Americas we sold 9 5% more parrs than
N 2012/13 but our average prices were strongly diluted
by increased promotional activity, resuling in regional
turnover growth of only 8 4% In Europe we continued to
concentrate on maintaning the qualty of our distnbution
with our wholesale and franchise partners whilst gaining
a stronger foothold in online and outlet trading, the scale
of our business being broadly unchanged in the year
although with indications of better growth conditions
appearing over the horizon The proportion of the Group's
annual turnever ansing In markets outside the UK and
ROl increased to 58 2%, a positive long-term trend which
I would expect to see becoming further accentuated Iin
the future In ine with our strategy




Group operating profit for the year grew by 5 0% to
£128 4m, representing another new record for the Group
In aggregate, the regions generated controllable profits
(net achieved margin less the costs direcily controlled

by each region) in Iine with the previous year, with strong
improvements in Asia Pacrfic and the UK and ROl bemng
offset by a planned reduction in European profits and a
lower than expected result in the Amencas Overheads
managed at a Group level In supply chan, product and
marketing all rose strongly compared with last year,
partly reflecting the added vanable costs of additional
trading volume but also impacted by deliberate
Investments in bullding resources, capability and
infrastructure to support longer term growth The burden
of additional Group overheads was offset by two main
compensating factors firstly by a planned realignment
of our accounting practice in relation to lease accounting
in the Amencas to bring this into ine with established
Group policies, which had the effect of releasing a
once-only benefit of £8 5m to profits in the year,

and secondly by a reduction of £5 5m in the cost of
management incentives In consequence of the lower
than projected trading result at regional level Exchange
variances had a net positve impact of £2 1m on Group
operating profit compared with a £3 1m positive last year

Far the first time this year we are able to report regional
profitabiity on a sinictly comparable basis across the four
regional frading entities In fact there were significantly
mixed fortunes across the regions In the UK and RO,
the focus of our sirategy on achieving a higher mix of
full-price product resulted n stronger average prices and
a 1 3% mprovement in gross margins, Iifting regional
profits by 8 8% compared with 2012/13 As described
above the Asia Pacrfic regon benefited from continued
buoyant trading volumes In 1ts major markets, also
underpinned by healthy margins, hence profits rose by
an impressive 20 0% despite a much higher investment in
operating costs to support this rapidly growing business
European regional profits exceeded our expectations but
ended 12 5% below last year due to a combination of
higher operating costs, exchange pressures on prices
and margins and some minor re-phasing of early
Spring/Summer 2014 orders into next year The most
severe challenges to regional trading performance cams,
however, In the Amencas As described in my September
report, a buld-up of excess inventory during the first half
hampered operational execution throughout the year and
caused considerable damage to both pnces and margins
Market conditions grew softer and more promaoticnally
driven In the final quarter, hence the Americas ended a
very challenging year with profits 12 1% below 2012/13
Work 15 under way to bring about future improvement in
this rather uneven pattern of performance by region, but |
am encouraged that our strongly dversified trading model
across channels and gecgraphies has again helped us to
maintan a set of robust Group results

External financing costs rose by £0 7m to £3 2m
reflecting a moderate increase in average borrowings
during the year as we completed the bulk of our
infrastructure investment in business systems and
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the Hanover Distnibution Centre A more favourable

trend i equity values and bond yeelds resulted, however,
in a reduction of £0 7m in the imputed costs of financing
our net pension deficit The resuliant profit before tax of
£119 8m was 5 5% higher than the previous year The
Group’s effective corporation tax rate reduced to 26 0%
{2012/13 27 9%), benefitng from both a reduction inthe
UK headlne rate of 1 1% and from a lower mix of profits
arnising In North America taxed at higher rates The Group
profit after tax of £88 7m represents an 8 3% improvement
on last year, whilst earnings per ordinary share also rose
by 8 3% to 149 3 pence per share, again a measure of
our solid progress in delvering improved shareholder
returns and a pleasing new record for the Company

The Group's commitment to strengthening its
infrastructure and bulding a more extensive distribution
footpnint for the Clarks brand has resulted in a
progressive increase in both fixed assets and working
capital over a number of years In line with this continued
trend our year end balance sheet shows a further rise

of 8 6% in the value of fixed assets, capital investment

of £68 Om being as expected well below the level of

the previous year {(£89 8m) but still comfortably higher
than the depreciation charge of £35 4m The four mayor
components of our capital programme durng the year
comprised £4 2mn relation to our SAP implementation
in the Americas, £16 9m to support the extensive testing
and commisstoning phases of the Hanover project,

£8 5m associated with new retail store openings and
refits in the Amencas and£11 1m in store investments

mn the UK and RO! Following a first half in which the
pattern of our working capital was somewhat distorted
by excess stocks in the Amencas, | am pleased to report
that the latter part of the year has seen us successfully
trade through the greater part of that stock through

our normal distribution channels and achieve improved
control over working capital in general The working
capital position closed 6 7% above the pnor year, with
stock value showing an increase of 11 1% Return on
capital employed continued to be adversely affected by
the current high fevels of investment, and reduced shightly
durnng the year from 20 3% to 19 3%

The Group’s cash flow position remained healthy, with
external borrowings at moderate levels throughout the
year Net cash flow was adverse by £19 9m, leaving
year end net borrowings at £59 7m (2012/13 £39 3m)
and mplied gearng at 11 8% We continue to be in

a position at present to fund our capital Investment
programme, working capial needs, ongaing pension
contnbutions (amounting to £35 5m durnng the year)
and regular dividend, interest and taxation outflows
from the cash flow we generate from normal footwear
operating actwities | anticipate that our cash flow and
borrowings position will strengthen further over the
medium term as the Group’s profitability builds in ine
with cur Five Year Plan

The following section s intended to highiight the principal
factors which have influenced our trading fortunes in the
regions during the past year




chief executive’s REPORT CONTINUED

OPERATING REVIEW

UK AND REPUBLIC OF IRELAND (ROI)

Although 2013 saw the beginnings of renewed economic
growth, we experienced few signs of improved consumer
confidence in UK and ROI hugh streets Our core strategy
for the region of drving a more premium full-pnce mix of
adults business whilst protecting our dominant share of the
children’s market again served us well Comparative sales
I our stores grew by an average of 2 7%, comfortably
above the British Retall Consortium sector index of +0 1%
Although pairs sold through our retall estate fell marginalty,
average prices still improved by 1 8% against the pnor year
and rmargins also strengthened The early Autumn period
saw another very strong Back-to-Schodl, enabling us to
grow our cash margins by around 5% from this crucial
trading penad and setting new standards of excellence in
operational delivery by our store teams Costs continued to
be tightly managed at all levels, so that the mproved pnce
mix and margin performance resulted in a creditable uplit
of 6 6% i retal channel profits

In tandem with raising the quality of our sales and

margin mix to drive higher returns in the traditional
bnicks-and-mortar retall estate, we continued to

pursue more stretching growth targets in the online
channel Turnover in the combined direct to home

and click-and-collect operation increased by 17 4%

to £64 3m and now represents 10 4% of our total UK

and ROl business The aggregate gross margin from
onhne rose by more than 20% As this channel matures
the opportunity to sustain the impressive growth rates
achieved in recent years does inevitably diminish, however
we have continued to set farly challenging targets for the
next two to three years and remain confident that we can
continue to build on the current strong base As descnbed
In the Strategy Review section in this report, our ambitions
to grow a much bigger global online business will be
supported by a major investment 10 a new global online
technology platform over the next two years

Good sales and profit performances 1n all our other
distrbution channels also contributed much to our strong
regional results Our Factory Shopping division continued
to prosper, growing average pnces by 4 2% and securing
higher margmns despite an increased mix of excess stock
quidation Channel profits advanced by 8 7% In spite of
nsing operating costs, dniven by changes to occupancy
arrangements in a number of the outlet centres where we
trade In both our wholesale and franchise operations, the
focus on raising average prices and improving full-prce
mix also resulted in better margin performance, leading to
growth in channel profits of 3 7% and 10 5% respectively
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Much work remains to be done in our “home” market of
the UK and RQOI both to attract new consumers to the
Clarks brand and to improve the brand experence of
our existing loyal consumer base However, | am pleased
with the further strong progress we have made this year
in delivering a higher quahty mix of business across

the channels, maxirmising operational efficienciss and
IMproving returns

AMERICAS

I described at length in my half-year report the operational
and market factors which contnbuted to overstocking

in the Amencas region dunng the first half, resulting in
severe dilution of average pnces and margins Whilst |
am pleased to report that the regional leadership team
came to grips very effectively with the stock issues in
the remainder of the year, the adverse impact on
customer service levels has continued to hinder our
efforts to recover our profit position In the short-term

In addition, the consumer environment in the United
States appears to have grown more aggressively
promotional during the Autumn, most noticeably since
the Novermnber Thanksgiving holiday season As well

as challenging us to dnve transactions N our own
stores through deeper promotional actmity, this shift

In market conditions has restricted our wholesale
partners’ sell-through and limited both their In-season
replenishment orders and therr appetite to commit ‘open
to buy' for new Spring season’s product All of this has
created a particularly demanding combination of threats
to our business performance n a year already rmarked
by high levels of change In consequence regional sales
grew by 6 4% hut controllatle profits were strongly
impacted by stock iqudation acivity and fell well short
of expectations, ending 12 1% below the previous year

Wholesale despatch volumes increased by 8 7% but with
a mix heavily weighted towards closeouts and discounted
product, leading to a 6 7% reduction in average sslling
prices Total turnover grew by a modest 1 3% due to the
strong emphasis on stock reduction and some escalation
in the cost of rebates and returns Gross margins also
suffered accordingly, dipping by 2 5 percentage points
compared wath last year, worth an average £1 06 per par
The resultant channel profit fell 7 1% overall, ncluding an
18% reduction in the Canadian market where discounting
pressures proved especially severe and we encountered
disruption to our shipment levels due to credit concerns

It will be vital to iImprove our delivery performance in 2014
nght across the spectrum of custorner types if we are to
recover our growth momentum and achieve the targeted
returns n our wholesale channel




The impact of more Intense promotional activity to

help lquidate stock together with an ncreasingly
pnce-competitive consumer landscape also left a strong
mark on our retall performance Comparative sales in
full price stores declined by 1 2% for the year compared
with the FDRA footwear sector index of +0 6%, whilst
outlet stores fared better at +2 0% aganst the FDRA
comparator of +0 6% Altthough total sales in full price
stores grew by 7 7% on last year with the benefit of
additional capactty, average pnces fell by 6 1% and net
margins by 6 8% per par With the addition of a net new
29 locatrons, our fixed costs increased and could not be
fully recouped during the year Qutlets were impacted
more directly by our stock clearance efforts, with positive
sales growth of 5 1% turning into a 5 5% shortfall to

last year on the net margin ine Although good contral
of operational standards and tight management of

costs offset to some extent the reduced margins,

the combined retal estate recorded a reduction of

£6 5m in channel profitability

The developing e-commerce channel provided the brightest
spot In our trading performance Total sales grew by a very
encouraging 49 8% to £16 5m and now represent almost
3% of our Amencas business Although gross margin rates
held up pretty wel, we found It Increasingly necessary for
our online promotions strategy to mirror actvity in full price
stores so that fulf year net margin per par became diluted
by 13 1% i companson with the prior year The channel
nonetheless remaned highly profitable, the strong volume
gains drving an improvement in cash margin by 44 8%
and delvering a healthy return of 35% on sales We plan to
begin the smplementation of our new global e-commerce
platform in the Amencas N Autumn 2014, and anticipate
that this will prowide an exciting cpportunity for accelerated
growth in the future

With the successful implementation of SAP now safely
behind us, the Amerncas team I1s now focusing greater
attention on the Hanover distribution centre As this
project enters its final stages, cur prime focus Is on
testing the mechamical handling systems and software
solution to iron out any problems ahead of go-live,

and on planning in detail the transtion of receipts and
shipments from the old facility to the new Whilst much
work remains tc be done, our project ttmelines and
costs remain broadly on track We currently anticipate
that our first “live” despatches will commence in May
this year, and that we should be In a position to support
our full operational requrements from the new facility
for the Spnng/Summer 2015 season Once delivered
successfully, | am confident that Hanover wilf be a big
step forward In improving the quality of our infrastructure
in the Amencas and will become a cntical source of
competitive advantage in enhancing our customer
service and logistics capability

EUROPE

The focus of our European trading strategy was again
on protecting the quality of our wholesale distribution,
enhancing service standards for our key partners, and
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bulding a more diversified channel structure Including
a bigger online presence together with selective
investments in Factory Shopping capacity With the
rate of new franchise store openings having moderated
to 12 new locations, we concentrated on iImproving
sales per door from our existing portfolio and on
enhancing the consumer expenence of our brand

We also continued {o mvest in bullding the appropnate
mix of resources and capabtlity to support the
development of a more mature multi-channel business
structure for the future We strengthened our resources
In key areas such as channe! management, buying

and merchandising, marketing, commercial finance
and human resources, with investments taking place
at both regional and indwidual market level As the
Eurozone emerges from several years of economic cnsis
and negative growth, we can already see a return of
greater business confidence feeding through into our
order books The foundational mvestments we have
been making in new distribution, people and capability
will become all the more mportant in enabling us to
|capitalise on growth opportunities as they matenalise

For most of the year we have seen a positive underlying
volume trend in the European marksts with growth in

the range of 3-5%, however we have opted to phase

an element of our Spring/Summer 2014 orders for
delivery slightly later in the season resulting in despatches
falling 2 2% and turnover 1 5% below last year Itis
particularly encouraging to note that within our three

main sub-regions of Western, Central and Eastern and
Southern Europe, it was inthe South where we saw

the best growth following several years of challenging
conditions, with trading volume in parrs Iifting by 8 9%
and turnover by 4 6% Qur overall average prices

and gross margns have also held up ahead of our
expectations and in ine with 2012/13, although a rise

in some of our distnbution and sourcing related costs

led to a 1% reduction In net achieved margins per par
Regional overheads increased by 9 2% in fine with our
planned investments in the key resource areas, 1N order to
strengthen our nfrastructure and position the business for
future growth The resulting controllable profit reflects a
12 5% dechne on the previous year Despite this, | believe
that we have now laid the groundwork very effectively for
stronger business performance mowving forwards and will
see renewed growth momentum beginning in 2014

ASIA PACIFIC

The performance of our Asia Pacific region continues

to go from strength to strength Economic conditions
were not uniformly favourable, with ongoing instability In
some parts of the Middle East, a slowing pace of growth
in key markets such as China and India and severe
exchange pressures in Japan, India and several Gther
emerging economies Despite this cur focus on achieving
greater brand presence and a broader footprint for our
distribution continued to yield strong commercial results
Sales volume in the region grew by 0 9m parrs or 26 5%
to 4 25m parrs, now almostequal to the scale of our
European business, whilst turnover grew by 18 6%
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to £125 0m On the whole we mantained a positive
territory and product category mix, enabling us to grow
net margins by 0 8% despite a decline of 2 7% in average
seling prices As in Europe, we recognise the importance
of bullding infrastructure, increasing resources and
improving capability to create a sustainable base for future
growth As planned mnvestments in these areas resulted in
a shamp 23 5% nse in regional operating costs but still left
controllable profits a healthy 20 0% up on the year

The main growth engine for the region continues to be
China, which accounted for more than 40% of both
turnover and controllable profits The China group
including Hong Kong and Korea grew volume sales by
25 5% to 1 7m pars, Increased turnover by 26 8% and
terrtory profits by 33 4%, a remarkable new landmark
set of results for our business and a huge credit to our
talented China leadership team In Incia, our Joint Venture
company saw trading volumes grow by almost 80%

and turnover by 71 3%, whilst we ended the year with

36 owned stores, 10 franchise stores and a growing
wholesale channel The continued devaluation of the
Rupee has driven unplanned price increases which have
lrmited our volume growth and held down profitabiity We
are targeting a breakeven result at EBITDA level in 2014
There were a number of other noteworthy successes at
terntory level the South East Asia markets bounced back
from the disruption caused by our change in business
model in early 2012, posting a 26 3% growth in pars and
42 6% improvement in profits, and the Middle East team
also maintained its growth trajectory, with pairs and sales
both up more than 25% and profits ahead by 9 1%

Whilst | am delighted by the results we have achieved by
locking into faster growth rates than could be accessed
In our more established markets, | would emphasise that
the region 1s entenng a phase of increased investment

to build for the longer term future Indeed this 1s already
happening, as evident for example in the opening of a

net 43 new franchise stores and 29 new shop-n-shops
during the year and in the increased investment in people,
capabilty and traning We have been working towards
roling out our SAP technology solution in China and
Japan, with go-live planned for Summer 2014 In the
Strategy Review section below | have also commented

in more detall on our intentron to mvest in further evolving
our business models in the region Ultmately our ambition
15 to increase the scale of our Asia Pacific business and
its importance as part of the Group over the coming
years, but to tackle this in a way which will make our
growth sustanable
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STRATEGY REVIEW

The core elements of cur business strategy have been
well established for some tirme, but of course we continue
to refine them in response o new challenges and threats
and to the sver changing needs of consumers Our
efforts are united by the ambition of making Clarks the
leading everyday global footwear brand, making the
brand the first choice for style with comfort To help
simplify our plans for execution and help communicate
them clearly, we have found 1t useful to break down

our strategy into three prmary goals to builld a global
brand, to mprove our quality of earnings, and to dnve
sustanable growth in our marksts

Building a global brand involves enhancing the consumer
expenence In all our distnbution channels as a means of
attracting new consumers whilst nspinng loyal existing
consumers | described In my September report the good
progress we have achieved over the past year in setting
out a clear defintion of the Clarks brand personality

and our desired market positionng In addition we have
identified our target consumer groups globally and have
developed a segmented distnbution map which will be
used to help us reach the relevant consumer targets in
the places they lke to shop Weare also well progressed
with our thinking about how we should organise our
product offer aganst a collections strategy aligned to our
consumer targets Whilst much of this remains a work

in progress from an execution standpeint, it has proved
mvaluable in enabling us to sharpen our thinking about
potential growth areas for the brand

As shoemakers, first and foremost, we are devoted

to meeting consumer needs with the highest quality
products Through 2013 we developed and launched
adult collections which target specific consumer groups
and distribution with relevant products, to enable easy
navigation of our derse product offer The collections
were launched at our first global sales conference held

In December 2013 We have also undertaken

a comprehensive review of our icons and archives,

to identify design signifiers that tuly represent Clarks
hentage The resulting ‘Hand of Clarks’ distills our unique
and Effortless British Style into a handwriting that will
recur throughout our collections in years to come and
differentiate us in the eyes of our consumers We are also
successfully using collaborations as a shorteut to building
desirabiity in Clarks and creating PR opportunities

The most recent of these collaborations with Orla Kiely
for Spnng/Summer 2014 in the womens range has
surpassed expectations, with sellin across all four




regions Sell out well ahead of plan has proven that we
are able to achieve significantly higher price points and
achieve strong margins with desirable product

Improving the qualty of earnings means enhancing
average prices and margins over time, justified by
desirable product and an expenence of the brand which
makes consumers wiling tc pay more It will also require
us to deliver economies of scale from our simplified
giobal supply chain and sourcing structure, as well as a
simplfication of product assortment across the regions
Shaping a more efficient cost structure across other
group and enabling services over the medium-term will
be another important component of this deliverable

Drving sustanable growth in the regions will require us

to continue broadening the distnbution footprnt of the
brand and to increase brand investment to dnive higher
consumer demand Our vision for our 1deal distribution
structure 1s based on the current multi-channe! mode!,
but i realty we are already running a number of

variants of that model depending on the dynamics of

a partrcular region and its stage of matunty There are
many challenges inherent in aligning the thecretical target
distnbution and consumer targets by region with the
existing realities, most notably n the UK and ROl where
we have the deepest fixed investrment in retail capacity
Getting the pace of change nght will be key to maximising
the opportunittes Conversely there s rich potential

in achieving a better long-term alignment between
consumer targets and correctly segmented distnibution
structure Even i the short-term we have significant gaps
in online {Asia, Europe, to some extent North America),
franchise {United States) and owned retall (most of Asia,
Canada, still short of the optimal scale in the United
States) which would offer further growth opportunities
Cur ultimate ambttion 1 to provide a seamless, integrated
experience of the Clarks brand to consumers wherever
they are In the world and through whichever channel they
choose to access the brand There 15 both a massive
amount of work stili for us to do to bring this to Ife

in the regrons and enormous commercial potential

to be unlocked

Cur business strategy 1s dependent on continuous high
level nvestment in both capital and revenue terms
Alongside higher marketing spend we will nesd to make
progressively deeper investment in people, process and
technology One of the key technolegy projects for the
next two years 1s the replacement of our current online
systems platforms with a new global platform, which
we believe will deliver accelerated growth in online
sales across the regions We are alsc in the process

of evaluating how to adapt our strategic thinking to
harness new digital technologies and capabilities, and
recognise that we are still playing catch-up in this arena
It will not be possible for us to fully realise our vision of
an integrated consumer experience acress all channels
without a commitment to investment in digital capability
and a clear pathway to making the “ig data” revolution
relevant to our particular commercial needs
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Over the next few years we anticipate that investment
will also be required to evolve our business models In
the Asta Paacific region from current partnership-based
structures such as distnbutorships to more controlled
structures including a higher component of Clarks
operated stores and franchises One good example of
this evolution 1s our acquisition In August last year of the
distnbutor business in Turkey, a market we regard as
having high potential for long-term growth Another,
more recent instance 1s our acquisition of 34 full-price
stores and two franchise stores in Southern China
from the regicnal distnibution partner in December
Similar investments are also ikely to be made in
certan European markets over time  The underlying
purpose of these changes I1s to acquire greater control
over the development of our brand in key markets

In the shart-term such investments may result in a
slowing of our profit growth as we absorb the impact
of extra capacity and related overheads Over the longer
term they will be essentialin enabling us to achieve
sustainable and profitable growth

On the whole | am very satisfied with the current progress
Iin embedding our new global operating model with its
mulii-faceted process, communications and capability
challenges There are naturally a number of areas whers
we are working to bring about improvements Perhapsthe
biggest threat to cur success N executing the strategy les
however not in any ndividual area of under performance
but in our ability to get nght the overall calibration of the
pace of change, including layering in new investments in

a way that the orgarisation can digest them but without
creating volatiity in our commercial resulis This will often
involve fine Judgements but | will continue to be guided by
the am of producing consistent growth in turnover and
shareholder returns over the medium-term whilst bullding
the business for Icng-term sustainable value

OUTLOOK FOR 2014

Economic indicators in our major markets around the
world present a rather vanable picture In the UK and
ROI, whilst at the macro level there might be growing
posttive signs of recovery, for the average hard-pressed
consumer the real sense cf a feel-good factor which
might influence discretionary spending mtent remains
elusive This 1s also largely true of present conditions in
North Amenca, although the sheer scale and dynamism
of the US economy probably justifies more optimism for
a sustained return to growth The Eurozone economies,
especially in the South where recession has hit hardest
and proved most protracted, appear to offer some
encouraging indications that the worst 1s now over and
that conditions are more conducive for us to recover
our growth momenturmn The major Asia Pacific markets
exhibit widely varying charactenistics In China and India,
the beom conditions of the past few years seem to have
given way to a slowing trend in economic expansion whilst
many smaller emerging markets remain caught m a cycle
of instabilty and currency devaluation In Scuth Amenca,
the recent scoial and economic turbulence N Venezuela
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looks Iikely to continue to disrupt our normal trading
paitern for the foreseeable future Accepting that there will
never be a unformly favourable set of externat conditions
given the broad geographic span of our business, on the
whole | remain optimistic that the major economies where
we trade will offer shghtly improved growth prospecits for
our brand in 2014 compared with 2013

In the UK and ROl and most overseas markets, owned
retall stores and franchise stores have transitioned
successfully from residual Auturmn/Winter inventory
clearance to early trading in new Spring/Summer 2014
merchandise, with some positive initial results Our
wholesale forward order position for the Spring/Summer
seasocn, usually a reliable barometer for the strength of
underlying demand for our brand, 1s also reasonably
encouraging Based on the known trends the Asia Pacific
region appears well set to maintain a trajectory for sales
growth of more than 20% on last year, whilst Europe and
the UK and ROl have each posted strong single-digit
Increases n orders

Cnly in the Amencas are we currently seeing some

initial softness in market demand in both the wholesale
and retal channels Whilst this may be reflective of the
continued highly promoticnal trading environment, we
also identify 1t to some extent with our own operational
failings which have undermined service standards to our
customers over the past few seasons We are placing

the highest prionty on improving our planning capability,
on-time delivery performance to customers and nventory
control, all of which we beleve to be critically important if
we are to be successful n achieving our growth targets in
the Americas in the coming year This in turn will be a wital
factor n underpinning the profit performance of the Group,
by enabling us to avod the rsk of price and margin
erosion on the scale we expenenced 1n the current year
We are focusing hard on a vanety of actions to secure
this improvernent, including a very strong engagement

of the Americas leadership team with the planning of the
transition to the new Hanover distnbution faciity

i8

| beheve the past year has seen us make significant
progress In iImplemeniing our strategy of transforming
Clarks tinto a global brand We have committed much of
our energy to embedding our new business model with
Its attendant process, people and technology challenges
We have successfully delivered a further improvement

In turnover and sharehelder returns whilst continuing to
strengthen the business for the long-term | would ke
to take this opportunity to thank all those colleagues
from across the Group whose talent, enthusiasm and
commitment have made this success possible

MELISSA POTTER
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
215T MARCH 2014




financial

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR

Group turnover increased to £1,541 Om from £1,460 6m,
an increase of 5 5%

Group profit before interest, share of operating loss of joint
venture and exceptional tems rose by 5 0% to £128 4m
Group profit before interest rose by 5 1% to £127 8m

Profit before tax rose by 5 5% to £119 8 Reduced
pension financing ¢osts of £5 Om compared to £5 7m
offset the higher external interest costs of £3 Om
compared to £2 3m in the prior year as a resuit of higher
average borrowings durng the year Profit after tax of
£88 7m 1s 8 3% higher than last year's comparative of
£81 9m Post exceptional earnings per share increased
1o 149 3 pence per share from 137 8 pence last year
The underlying growth in earnings per share was 8 3%

A detailed review of trading performance for each
business division is provided in the Chief Executive's
report on pages 12 to 18

REVIEW

The Group continues to prepare its financial statements in
accordance with UK GAAP

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Financial Reporting Council (FRC) has replaced
current UK GAAP with FRS 102 The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland)
with effect from periods beginning on or after 1st January
2015 FRS 102 s based on the International Financial
Reporting Standard for Small and Medium sized Entities
{IFRS for SME’s), amended for use in the UK

The Board has carefully evaluated the ments of adopting
both full IFRS and FRS 102 and has decided to adopt
FRS 102 on the basis that thus will be the approach best
suited to the commercial interests of the Group and its
shareholders The adoption date for the Group will be
for financial statements relating to the year ended 31st
January 2016 and all changes will be outlined in the
financial statements for the year ended 31st January
2015 in readiness for adoption the following year

The introduction of FRS 102 will have a major impact on
the financial statements of any entity currently preparing
financial statements under UK GAAP The adoption of
FRS 102 will lead to some changes to the format of the
financial statements and the disclosures required, as well
as some changes to the numbers FRS 102 will change
the recognition criteria for varnous assets and habilities,
the basis on which some items are measured and the
treatment of certain gains and losses most notably in

the area of financial instruments
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PRESENTATION OF RESULTS

In ine with previous years we have chosen to report on
the face of the Group profit and loss account the costs
of providing fong-term mcentive schemes to Executive
Directors and senior management as a separate tem
charged in armving at operating profit In the current

year the profit and loss charge relating to long-term
incentive charges was £1 1m (2013/13 — £6 6m) Please
refer to the “Long-term Incentive Plan” section of the
remuneration report on page 37 for a full description

We have separately reported the results of our joint
venture in India, Clarks Future Footwear Ltd n ine with
FRS 9 (Associates and Joint Ventures) we have used the
gross equity method of consclidation under which our
share of the gross assets and habilittes underlying the net
amount of the Investment 1s shown in aggregate on the
face of the balance sheet In the profit and loss account
our share of the joint venture's turnover 1s noted and our
share of operating losses in the joint venture 1s shown
below Group operating profits The Group’s share of
losses in the year was £0 8m {2012/13 - loss of £0 7m)
The Group's share of the joint venture's turnover of £5 6m
{2012/13 - £3 3m) has also been reported separately

During the year a detailed review was carned out to
ensure that Group accounting policies were being
applied consistently throughout the Group In the
Amencas region, this review identified three areas in

the area of accounting for leases where Inconsistencies
were evident Where an operating lease has scheduled
changes in rent, under US GAAP the rent 1s expensed
on a straight-ine basis over its Iife, with a deferred liability
or asset reported on the balance sheet for the difference
between the profit and loss expense and the cash outlay
Group accounting policy {under UK GAAP) 1s to expense
rent on an incurred basis Alsc under US GAAP any
benefit gained as a result of a rent free penod within a
lease agreement 1s amortised over the entire lease term
Clarks’ Group policy 1s to amortise the benefit of the rent
free pencd over the penod from inception of the lease to
the first break clause in the lease Finally under US GAAP
any benefit gained as a result of a lease incentive within
a lease agreement I1s amortised over the entire lease
term Group policy 1s to amortise the benefit of the lease
incentive over the penod from inception of the lease to
the first break clause in the lease

These three related alignments resulted in a one-off
gain of £8 5m which has been accounted for within

the 2013/14 financial year as a change in accounting
estimate, FRS 18 — Accounting Palicies, and 1s included
within Group operating profit

EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

There were no exceptional items in either the current year
or the prior year
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FINANCING COSTS

Financing costs of £8 Om (2012/13 — £8 Om) comprise
net bank interest charges of £3 Om {2012/13 - £2 3m)
and net pension financing costs of £6 0m (2012/13

- £5 7m) Pension financing is an imputed charge
calculated in accordance with Financial Reporting
Standard 17 and represents the difference between
the interest charge on the Group's pension liabiities
and the expected return on the pension assets, the
former based on a discount rate derwved from high
quality corporate bonds

TAXATION

The Group effective rate of tax on pre and post-exceptional
earmings 18 26 0% (2012/13 — 27 9%), there being no
significant exceptional items in the year

The current year pre-excepticnal tax rate, excluding

prior year items, 1s 27 1% (2012/13 - 28 5%), the 1 4%
point reduction i1s primarily a result of the decrease of the
2013/14 blended standard UK corporation tax rate of

1 1% points to 23 2% and the change in the terrtory mix
of Group profits

The Group tax rate exceeded the standard UK
corporation tax rate of 23 2% for the year due to

the absence of UK tax relef on commercial bullding
depreciation and the proportion of Group prafits ansing
in higher tax rate junsdictions, such as Canada, China
and the United States The current year Group tax rate
18 lower than the forecast rate reported in the interim
financial statements of 28 1%, due to North Amencan
profits compnsing a lower propertion of the total

The current year tax rateis 1 1% points greater than

the overall Group pre-exceptional tax rate This 1s manly
due to a prior year £0 5mtax credit for the restatement
of UK non-pension deferred tax balances, resutting from
the legslated reduction in the UK corporate tax to 20%
by 1st Apnl 2015, and a pnor year UK corporation tax
credit to reflect the submitted corporation tax returns for
2012113

BALANCE SHEET

Capital employed has increased by £61 7m or 10 2%
to £665 3m at 31st January 2014 Qur regional working
capital levels are £48 8m higher than last year with

the UK and ROI region accounting for £28 7m of that
increase In the Americas, working capital increased by
£4 5m Regional inventory levels increased by £50 5m,
with the UK accounting for all of the increase Amencas
inventory values decreased by £3 Om from a hugh point
in the pror year due to some ovarstocking

Our tangible fixed asset value has increased by £24 6m
{8 6%} to £309 3m as we continue to invest In the
business in retail stores both in the UK and North
America, and have continued to roll out our iInternational
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franchise store programme The infrastructure investment
in North America continued dunng 2013 Dunng the

year, an additional £16 9m was invested in the Hanover
Logistics Centre project bringing the total invested to date
to £70 9m Project Atlas {our implementation of SAP n to
the Amencas) went live in the year Dunng the year a final
£4 2m was mnvested globally In this project bringing the
total invested to £39 9m

We have relocated and opened 11 new owned stares In
the UK and ROl at a cost of £4 4m (previous year being
six stores at a cost of £1 7m) We have also refitted a
further 19 stores at a cost of £3 8m (previous year being
23 stores at a cost of £3 5m)

We have relocated and opened 29 new stores in North
America at a cost of $9 3m {previous year 41 new stores
in North America at a cost of $13 6m) We have alsc
refitted a further nine stores at a cost of $2 9m (previous
year 12 stores at a cost of $3 3m)

Qur Asia Pacific store count grew by an additional 57
stores in 2013 at a capital cost of €0 9m This brings
the Asia Pacific international franchise store count to
227 We also added 29 own retall concessions within
department stores to the China portfolio n 2013 through
the transition to Group of our partner operations in the
Guangdong province

In Europe we consolidated our International Franchise
Store estate by adding 12 new Franchise Stores in 2013
at a capital cost of £0 3m to Clarks With several strategic
closures this increased our overall franchise store count
to 167 We also added four factory stores at a capital cost
of £0 9m, bringing our cutlet store count to 10 In addition
o the above, we have five owned retall stores, unchanged
over the year

Resultant Group capital expenditure of £68 Om
(2012/13 - £83 8m) remained well ahead of the level
of depreciation charged of £35 4m {2012/13 - £30 6m)

Prowvisions excluding deferred tax of £8 Om have
decreased by £6 5m on last year as we are holding
lower prowisions for long-term incentives for executives
and senior managers

Due to the mcreases n working capital, ihe levels of
capital investment and pensten deficit funding we are
reporting a net borrowings position of £59 7m, £20 4m
unfavourable to last year's net borrowing posttion of
£3% 3m Cash flow generated from operating activittes
of £82 5m was £14 7m lower than last year's £107 2m

driven predominantly by the higher increases in working
capital levels this year Cash outflows from investing
actmvities of £64 4m were lower than the prior year’s
comparative of £94 5m reflecting the lower infrastructure
spending in North Amenca as we completed the global
SAP implementation dunng the year and are nearnng
completion of the Hanover Logistics centre project

Shareholders’ funds stand at £505 8m, £34 6m hugher
than last year's comparatve Net assets (excluding
pension hability) of £586 2m were £36 Sm higher than
last year

PENSIONS

The deficit in the defined benefit pension schemes
continues to impact the Group's trading results and
balance sheet At the year end the deficit amounted to
£80 4m, an increase of £2 3m on the prior year value of
£78 1m Funding levels continued to be volatile durning the
year At the year-end lower bond yields had again broadly
offset improvements n equity valuations during the year
The cost of all Group pension schemes i1s shown In Note
20 to the financial statement

Actuanal gains and losses are shown in the Statement of
Total Recognised Gains and Losses on page 53

Duning the financial year cash contnbutions into the mamn
UK fund by way of deficit funding amounted to £20 Om
{2012/13 — £20 Om) This included an acceleration of a
payment of £13 2m which did not fall due until 5th April
2014 (£13 2m was accelerated into 2012/13 which did
not fall due until 5th Apnl 2013) Contnbutions to the
main North Amencan defined benefit fund amounted

to $10 Om (2012/13 = $10 Om)

TREASURY OPERATIONS

The Group’s funding, lquidity, currency and miterest rate
nsks are managed by a Treasury Committee working
within a framework of palicies authorised by the Board
The policies are reviewed and updated annually where
necessary

FUNDING AND LIQUIDITY

The Graup's borrowing facilities comprnise a Revolving
Credit Facility with a syndicate of five major banks and a
total facility amount of £200 Om This facility was renewed
and extended In 2011 and 1s due to expire in March 2016
The Group alsc has UK and other overseas short-term
facilities amounting to £51 1m (2012/13 — £33 9m)




INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group Is exposed to interest rate nsk prncipally in
relation to borrowings and deposits denominated in Stering,
US Dollar and the Euro The Group’s policy 1s to use
denvative contracts where appropriate to maintamn a mix

of fixed and fioating rate borrowings to manage this nsk

CURRENCY RISK

The Treasury Committee manages currency exposure
relating o the Group’s trading operations by entering

into a combination of fixed forward dated and structured
instruments at key ponts throughout each season based
on detalled forecasts of future transaction flows The

main currencies In order of transactional value are US
Dollar, Euro and Japanese Yen The US Dollar 1s used
primarly for sourcing footwear from outside the USA,
examples being the Far East and Brazl Contracts are
placed competitively wath relationship banks Income and
expenditure flows 1N the same currency are offset as far as
possible through natural hedging and as a result sales and
purchasing activity within the Eurczone 1s consolidated

At the balance sheet date, the Group’s estimated currency
exposure for the Autumn/Winter 2014 and for earlier
seasons were coverad in hne with policy The total value

of fixed dated sale and purchase currency contracts at the
balance sheet date was £718 6m (2012/13 — £447 Om)

ROBIN BEACHAM
FINANCE DIRECTOR
218T MARCH 2014

O

The Strategic repor'T, as set out on pages 10 to 23 has
been approved by the Board

On Order of the Board,
DEBCRAH WAKEFORD

COMPANY SECRETARY
215T MARCH 2014
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CORPORATE

governance

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

During the year we have reviewed the changes reguired
for Iisted businesses that are set out In the UK Corporate
Governance Code {the Code), locked at practices
adopted by other privately owned businesses and also
considered what 1s an appropniate approach for the
Company bearng in mind its ownership structure

We are committed to mantaning a high standard of
corporate governance that reflects both the prninciples
of best practice that are set out in the Code and the
internal governance framework under which we operate
and manage the Gompany, its subsidianes and all of

its business operations, for the long-term benefit of all
shareholders

The Company will continue to meet the principles of
best practice set out in the Code where 1t Is felt to
be in the commercial interests of both the Company
and its Shareholders As set out below, this means
that the Board wili continue to share via this Annual
Report information regarding the Board itself and the
Committees which it operates

The Board considers that thus Annual Report and
the accounts set out herein are farr, balanced and
understandable

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board's pnmary obligations are to enhance all
shareholders’ interests by

- Reviewing and approving the Group strategy —
details of which can be found on pages 10 to 23,

— Approving the financial statements, together with
revenue and capital budgets and plans,
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— Determining, maintaning and oversight of controls,
audit processes and nsk management policies to
ensure the Company cperaies effectively, and

- Approval of matenal agreements, non-recurring
projects and capital expenditures

As at 31st January 2014, the Board comprised the
Charman, two Executive Directors, four Non-Executive
Directors (two of which are Clarks' family members)
and a Company Secretary

The code as it applies to FTSE 350 companigs stipulates
that at least half of the Board, excluding the Chairman,
should comprise Independent Non-Executive Directors
The Code defines independent Non-Executive Directors
as those who do not represent a s;gnificant shareholding
or have matenal business with the Company In the

case of the Group, two Non-Executive Directors ars
independent within thig definition The Board considers
that 1t 1s N the interests of the shareholders as a whole
that there should be two representatives of the Family
Shareholder Council on the Board serving as additional
Non-Executive Directors

Durming the financial year, only one Board change

took place Peter Davies resigned as Charman of the
Company with effect from 6th Decermnber 2013 and
Thomas J O'Nelll, 2 serving independent Non-Executive
Director was appointed as Chayman

Short biographies of each of the Board members are set
out on pages 42 to 43

The Board 1s satisfied that thers 1s an effective and
approprate balance of skills and sxpenence across the
members of the Board, Including (without imitation) in




the areas of retailing, finance and mternational trading
operations There 1s a vacancy on the Board for an
independent Non-Executive Director to replace

Thomas J O’Neill and at the time of writing this report,
the Chairman 1s preparing a review of the Board that will
consider what further skills and experience would be
beneficial to the Board It 1s anticipated that at least one
independent Non-Executve Director will be appointed
during the new financial year

The Company’s Articles of Association give power to the
Board to appoint Directors and there i1s a requirernent

in the Articles for one-third of the Dwectors to offer
themselves for re-election annually by rotation All
Directors are required to offer themselves for re-slection
at least once every three years, and any new Board
Directors appointed during a year are required to offer
themselves for election at the next AGM following ther
appointment This enables the shareholders to decide
on the election of the Company’s Board With regards to
those Directors who offer themselves for re-election at
the next AGM, the Board believes that the contnbutions
made by those Directors continue to be effective and that
the Company and its shareholders should support ther
re-election

Historically, the Board has appointed a Nominations
Committee to deal with Board appomntments on an ad-hoc
basis, but the Board has now approved that a permanenti
Nominations Committee should be established Further
detals on this Committee are set out below

There 1s a clear division of responsibility between

the Charrman — who 1s responsible for the effective
running of the Board — and the Chief Executive Officer
—who 1s responsible for setting and implementing the
strategy approved by the Board and overseeing the
management of the Company, through the running of the
Executive Leadership Team There 1s currently no Semor
Independent Director nominated, but it 1s anticipated that
one will be apponted dunng the new financial year

Board members are encouraged to challenge and to
bring mdependent judgement to bear on all matters,
whether strategic or operational The actions and
decisions of all the Non-Executive Directors who served
duning the year and up to the date of this report are
considered to be independent in both character and
Judgement

The Board continues to meet regularly dunng the vear
through scheduled meetings The Board manages the
Company through a formal agenda of matters reserved
for its decision and delegates specific responsibiities

to the Board Committees, as detailed in this Report
Prior to the start of each year, a schedule of dates for
that year's Board meetings is compiled to align as far as
15 reasonably practicable with the Company’s financial
calendar In addition, formal meetings of the Non-Executive
Directors will be undertaken by the Chairman without
Executive Directors present
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The Board recenves appropnate and timely information
prior to each meeting with a formal agenda, with Board
and Committee papers being distributed ahead of
meetings taking place Directors may challenge Company
proposals and decisions are taken democratically after
discussion Any Director that {eels that any concern
remans unresolved after discussion may ask for that
concern to be noted In the mnutes of the meeting Any
specific actions ansing from such meetings are agreed

by the Board and then folowed up by management

The Directors have access to the Group Director of
Legal and Company Secretary in order to support the
performance of thewr duties as Directors of the Company
There 13 an agreed procedure to enable individual
Directors to take independent legal and financial advice
at the Company’s expense, as and when necessary to
support the performance of ther duties as Directors of
the Company

The Comparty has In place an effective procedure to deal
with conflicts of interest The Board is aware of the other
commitments of its Board members and changes to
these commitments are reported to the Board

A formal evaluation of Board performancs will be
undertaken annually

The Group Director of Legal and Company Secretary has
responsibility for ensuring that all Beard procedures have
been comphed with

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board 1s supported by Audit, Remuneration,

Share Valuation Committee, Board Pensions Committee
and currently, an ad-hoc Nomnation Committee

The Board has agreed to adopt a permanent
Nominations Committee in the new financial year

Each Committee has access to such information and
advice as it deems necessary, at the cost of the Company;,
which also prowvides sufficient resources to enable thermn

to undertake tharr duties Each Commitiee has formal
terms of reference and 1s responsible for reviewing the
effectiveness of its terms of reference, as appropriate,

and for making recommendattons to the Board for
changes where necessary The Company Sacretary acts
as secretary to all the Committees with the exception of
the Board Pensions Committee which i1s supported by the
Pensions Manager A table showing attendees and chairs
of each Committee 1s set out overleaf

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has formal terms of reference

and meets at least three times a year Its duties inclucle
the review of internal controls and risks throughout the
Group, approving the Group's accounting policies and
reviewing the annual and ntenm report and accounts
before submission to the Board The Commitiee 1s
chaired by Non-Executive Director, Nigel Hall The Board
1S satisfied that the Charman has recent and




CORPORATE governance CONTINUED

relevant financial expenence to hold this position The
independence and objectivity of the external auchtors
and the effectiveness of the external audit process are
also considered 1t 1s a specific responsibility of the Audit
Committee to ensure that an appropriate relatonship 1s
maintained between the Group and its external auditors
The Audit Committee controls the provision of non-audit
services to safeguard the external auditor's objectivity
and independence Ths split between audit and non-
audit fees for the year under review 1s set out on page 57
External auditors and Company managers are inwited to
attend the meetings of the Committes as approprate

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Committee meets at least twice a year and its
responstbilties are to approve the remuneration and other
benefits of the Executive Directors The Committee also
receives reports on the terms and conditions of other
senior executives

SHARE VALUATION COMMITTEE

The Commitiee meets twice a year with representatives of
the valuers of the Company’s shares, together with other
advisers, to review the general trading background and
other appropriate information to assist in valuing shares

BOARD PENSIONS COMMITTEE

The Committee reviews and agrees any proposal for
changes to pension schemes foremployees All significant
changes are recommended to the Board for approval

NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE

Currently the Board convenes Nomination Committees
on an ad hoc basis to deal wath specific nominations

as necessary (such as the appontment of a new
Charrman) External advisors are used by the Committee
as approprtate The Board has agreed that a permanent
Nominations Committee will be established in the

new year and at the date of this Report, formal Terms

of Reference and membership for the Norminations
Comrmittee are under discussion 1t 1s antcipated that
the Nominations Committee will be responsible for
establishung a diversity policy for the Company

FAMILY SHAREHOLDERS' COUNCIL

Family shareholders holding the majonty of the ordinary
shares of the Company have formed a Council to ad
communication between shareholders and the Board
The Group ncurred £0 1m duning the vear in respect of
the running of the Family Shareholders® Council For a
summarised breakdown of the share register please refer

ATTENDANCE AT BOARD/COMMITTEE MEETINGS

The table below shows the attendance record of indmidual directors at board meetings and committees of which they

are members

Remuneraton Share Valuation Board Pensions
Man Board Audit Commrtiee Committes Commitiee Commitee
Member Attendance Member Attendance Member Attendance Member Attendance Member Attendance
Number of meetings 6 3 2 2 1
Executive Directors
Robin Beacham? yes 6 no 3 no - no 2 yes 1
Melissa Potter’ yes 6 no 3 no - no 2 yes 1
Non-Executive Directors
Peter Davies? Char 5 yes 2 yes 2 yes 2 Char 1
Thomas J O'NeilP yes 5 yes 3 yes 2 yes 2 -
Char 1
Hugh Clark?* ves 5 yes 3 Char 2 yes 2 no -
MNigel Hall yes 6 Char 3 yes 2  Char 2 no -
Stella David yes 5 yes 2 yes 2 yes 2 no
Timothy Campbeli* yes 6 yes 3 yes 2 yes 2 no -

1 Attended the Audit and Share Valuation Gommittee at the inwitation of the Committes

2 Resigned as Char on 6th Decembar 2013
3 Appointed as Char on 6th December 2013
4 Representatives of the Family Shareholder Council
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to page 44 The Council may nominate two persens for
appointment as Non-Executive Directors of the Group
During the year the Council has adopted a Visions and
Values governance framework that has been noted by
the Board

EXECUTIVE LEADERSHIP TEAM

The Executive Leadership Team consists of the Executive
Directors and key regional and functional Directors and
meets monthly It 1s chaired by the Chief Executive Officer
and 1s responsible for the day-to-day management of the
Group's business and the overall financial performance of
the Group in fulfilment of the strategy, plans and budgets
approved by the Board, as well as managing and
overseeing trading performance, key nsks, management
development and corporate social responsibility activities
The Chief Executive Officer reports to the Board on
Issues, progress and recommendations for change which
come out of the Executive Leadership Team's activities

SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of communicating
with its shareholders to ensure that its strategy and
performance are understood The full annual and intenm
report and accounts are avallable to all shareholders and
those that elect to do so may have access to a secure
online version All shareholders have tha opportunity to
ask questions at the Company's Annual General Meeting
(AGM) which all Directors attend At the meeting the
Chief Executive will give a statement on the Group's
performance dunng the financial year The Chairman

wilt advise shareholders on proxy voting levels and the
Company encourages all shareholders to attend and
participate In the AGM

AUDIT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board, through the Audit Committee, 1S responsible
for determining the nature and extent of sigrificant risks
it 18 willing to take in pursuance of the Group’s strategic
objectives 1t monitors the systern of internal controls
matntained by the Group and also has responstbility

for carrying out a review of the status of those internal
controls on an annual basis and reporting that it has
done s0 This system provides reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against matenal loss and includes
the safeguarding of assets, the maintenance of proper
accounting records, reliabilty of financial Information,
complance with appropriate legislation and mitigation
of business nsks There Is an ongoing process for
identifying, evaluating and managmg the significant nsks
faced by the Group

Key elements of the Group's system of internal controls
are as follows

— The orgarusation structurs sets out clearly defined lines
of responsibiity and delegation of authonty,

- The Group has a comprehgnsive system of financial
reporting,

29

The annual budget of each region and operating unit

is approved by the Executive Directors and the Board !
approves the overall Group budget,

Performance agamnst budget 1s reviewed by the Board
at each Board mesting and any significant vanances
are examined Detarled performance reviews arg
camed out by management,

There are clearly defined pohicies for capital
expenditure approval Including appropnate
authonsation levels Large capital projects and
Company acquisttions require Board approval,

A number of functions, which operate within policies
and delegated authonties established by the Board,
report to the Board penodically These include treasury
operations, corporate taxation, pension fund and risk
management, and

Management are responsible for the identification,
evaluation and management of key nsks applicable

to therr areas of the busness

Risks are associated with a variety of internal or external
evenis Including controls breakdowns, regulatery
requirements and natural catastrophe Each region

and operating unit 1s responsible for establishing and
operating the required detaled control procedures to
manage these risks

As inchcated in last year's Report, a Group Risk
Management Policy has been adopted Whilst ultimate
responsibility for nsk management remains with the Board,
the Company, through its estabhished Risk Management
team, continues to embed nsk management as an integral
part of normal business operations

A business-wide review of Internal controls and nsk
management systems s carned out every year and
reviewed by the Audit Committee on behalf of the Board
The review indicates areas in which the system of internal
controls could be further mproved Detaled reviews of
the most significant of these areas are conducted during
the following year and the results reported to the Audit
Committee The Audit Committee continues to review on
a regular basis the need for an internal audit function and
considers that the current systems and controls in place
provide adequate assurance at this time

AUDITOR INDEPENDENCE

The Board 1s satisfied that the external auditors,

KPMG LLP, have adequate policies and safeguards in
place to ensure that auditor obyjectmity and independence
are mantaned The external audrtors reported to the
Audit Committee annually on therr ndependence from
the Company




health and safety

Foliowing the transition by the business to a global
cperating model, a review of the current occupational
health and safety function was undertaken during the year
Sentinel Safety Solutions, an iIndependent company, were
instructed to conduct an audit on the Health & Safety
function within Clarks and we are now in the process

of working through the recommendations made, and
bullding upon the already excellent practices adopted In
our UK and ROl region to ensure that we can achieve a
consistent minmum standard of health and safety activity
and practice across the Group

At the time of writing this report, we are In the process
of recruiting a Group Head of Occupational Health and
Safety This role holder will have overall responsibility
for shaping the strategic vision, implementation and
development of the Clarks Group health and safety
management systems to ensure that as far as possible
that all operations are conducted In a safe and efficient
manner, to mnimise the ikelhood of accidents and
incident nsks for the organisation

Clarks continues to recognise the importance of Health

& Safety and our policies and procedures are reviewed
regularly Our aim 1s to manage all aspects of our
actvities to prevent harm to the public, cur customers,
contractors and staff Procedures are in place to enable
and encourage twa way communication and consultation
with regard to health, safety and welfare 1ssues to ensure
Health & Safety maintains a prominent consideration

in day to day operational activities Set out below 1sa
summary of our regonal health and safety actvities

UK AND REPUBLIC OF IRELAND (ROI)

We are pleased to report that there was no enforcerment
acton taken against the Company during 2013 24 visits
to our retall stores were made by the enforcement
agencies and our landlords in 2013, five less than the
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SUMMARY

previous year Seven were by Fire Officers, seven by the
Local Authonties and 10 by centre management companies

Reportable accidents (29) reduced by 15% on the 2012
total of 34

There were 14 reported cases of violence or abuse to
retall staff dunng the year, a decrease of 56% from the
previous year's total of 32 The British Retail Consortium
(BRC) reports a rate of these incidents to be 38 per 1000
staff in 2012/13 In UK and Republic of Ireland retail the
14 reported cases equates to 14 per 1000, well below
the BRC national figure

A total of 674 retall store assessments were completed
dunng the year All full-pnce, factory and franchise stores in
the UK and Republic of freland were assessed, and showed
an improvement N compliance aganst our 2012 audits

Training courses were run for Area Sales Managers,
Franchise Business Managers, Area Health and Safety
Specialists and Senior Managers on Health and Safety
Management, Risk Assessment in general and Fire Risk
Assessments in particular All Store Managers in Area 25
{South West) were given a day’s Health & Safety Training
as part of a pilot study which, having proved successful
will be extended to other areasin 2014

All UK and RO franchised stores operate identical
systemns and procedures as the Clarks-owned outlets

The Retaill element of the Asbestos Steenng Group has
been amalgamated into the quarterly Retall Health &
Safety Committee meetings A number of new intiatives
were Implementsd garly in 2012 at store level to inform
and train staff and to manage contractors, this was
re-briefed in January 2014 No asbestos-related
problems were expertenced durnng the year




AMERICAS

The total number of recorded accidents increased from
15210 2012 to 214 1n 2013 an increase of 62 (41%)

Of this 62, 47 were Record Only clams that had no

lost time or medical costs associated with them The
number of OSHA Recordable and Workers Compensation
cases mcreased by 15 (14 6%) from 103 to 118 This
figure should be noted within the context of the average
employee population for the Amencas Region increasing
11 6% from 2012 to 2013 One of the reasons attnbuted
for the increase In the recorded accidents at the Hanover
logistics centre 1s additiona! overtime In Retall the Benefits
team made a preseniation on Workers Compensation in
which they emphasised the mportance of reporting every
incicient, no matter how minor

In the Americas region logistics centre 189 employees
were trained as new hires, 114 receved Powered
Industnial Truck / Forklift / Highliit Traiming  All Maintenance
employees were re-certified in electncal safety Work
continued with an occupational therapist to help evaluate
work techmiques and body mechanics, training was
undertaken of all Fulflment department packing staff

and all employees were tramned in the new Hazard
Communication United Nations’ Globally Harmonised
System on the classrication and labelling of chemicals
(GHS) program changes

EURCPE

All showrooms and offices continue to be inspected
twice-yearly in the same way as those in the UK, a
responstbility of the Territory Manager / General Manager
who llaise with the health and safety team based in the
UK as appropriate

All Clarks-owned stores (with Clarks' employees) across
Europe are risk-assessed and audited in the same way
as i the UK though applying, where necessary, any local
statutory requirements The assessments are carned out
by the Area Managers

Al H&S information and traning matenal provided to the
stores has been translated nto the local language

ASIA PACIFIC

A regional Health, Safety and Welfare forum has been
gstabhshed to help build on understanding in this rapidly
growing part of the business The forum has been led by
Doug Searle — VP of Operational Development for Asia
and Heidi Neal - Head/VP of HR for Asia Pacific who
meets quarterly with representatives from each market
The first meeting was launched in Apnl 2013 kwas a
successful initiative and the forum looks at legal policy
changes, impacts within the markets and 1s used to share
and understand what 1s considered the best practice
approach for a gwven market and the region as a whole
within the context of the global approach for the business

SUPPLY CHAIN/LOGISTICS

Dunng the year, additional focus and support has been
provided to the Supply Chain function particularly with
regards to occupational health matters An Occupational
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Health Advisor continues to attend Westway weekly and
Watercrook quarterly to asstst the management teams to
reduce absence levels, and facilitate returns to work for
recuperating staff The Health & Safety Commitee now
meets monthly In Westway and six weekly in Watercrook
(previously two-monthly n Westway and Quarterly in
Watercrook)

There were 57 acaidents in Logistics, eight more than
in 2012 (Westway 49 up from 37 and Watercrook eight
down from 12) the more senous RIDDOR accidents
increased from three to four Despite the Increase,

no additional safety concerns have been raised or
trends identified and the support from the Logistics
senior management team in continuous health and
safety improvements continues No particular category
of incident has significantly increased, Manual Handling
remains the highest The Westway increase can be partly
explained by the increased presence of Tempaorary staff
Specffic targeted Manual Handling Techniques tramning
will be intfroduced in 2014

An IOSH (Institute of Occupational Safety & Health) four
day Managing Safely accredited course was held for both
Westway and Watercrook management (six managers)
This course provides management with the practical

skills to handle health and safety including Hazard
Identification, Risk Assessment, Risk Control, Legal
Respensibilities, Accident and Incident Investigation

and Performance Measurement Five Logistics Managers
will attend the same course in early 2014

Health and Safety in the Dongguan office 1s managed
through a H & S Commitiee which meets quarterly and

1S chaired by the Asia Sourcing Manager The premises
are audited before each meeting when all the usuat healtth
and safety subjects are assessed Activities which would
be regarded as the norm in the UK also take place in
Dongguan e g fire wardens, fire dnlls, trained first aiders
and the testing of electncal applances (PAT testing)

The main body of work for 2013 has been to complete
written Risk Assessments for all job roles across the office
and these are now In place

Health and Safety policy and procedures — in most
mstances — UK legislation dermands an equal or higher
tevel of compliance than local legislation in China As a
result the policies and procedures appled in China are
those of C&J Clark International Health & Safety Policy
with additions where necessary to cope with special local
crrcumstances e g typhoon procedures

No compliance or enforcement issues have been
reported from Dongguan

HEAD OFFICE, STREET

Departmental H&S Inspections were carmnied out

twice yearly, in January and July In 2014 this wil

be undertaken by the Health & Safety department to
Improve consistency across deparimentis There were
no reportable accidents at Head Office in 2013




behaving,
responsibly

SUMMARY

Behaving Responsibly 1s about the way we do business,
care for each other, our environment and the communities
arcund us Our commitment and programme of activities
play an important part in protecting our reputation with
employees, consumers, shareholders and others who
have high expectations of the way we behave

in 2013, we made good progress across priorities that
are important to our business and our stakeholders We
also continued to integrate Behaving Responsibly into our
strategic plans, reflecting the impact that our progress in
this area can have on our averall success as a business
Our approach to responsible business will continue to
develop as we grow We know there’s always more that
we can do to demonstrate our commitment to Behawving
Respansibly, and we welcome your feedback — please
email us with your comments via csr@clarks com

ABOUT BEHAVING RESPONSIBLY

Our Behaving Responsibly programme 1s structured
around five pillars = Our Operations, Our People, Our
Products, Our Communmty and Our Suppliers Across all
of these pillars we am to understand what's important

to our employees, consumers, shareholders and others,
and to take these views into account when identiying our
prionty areas for action

We're currently focusing on the following prionties

Our Operations — Energy and Greenhouse Gases
(GHGS)

QOur People - Engaging Employees in Behaving
Responsibly

Our Products — Raw Matenals and Product Packaging
Our Community — Chartable Giving

Our Supplers — Supplier Working Condiions
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The following sections demonstrate how we are
integrating Behaving Responsibly into the way we do
business You can find out more about the five piffars
of our programmme, and the 2013/14 activiies and
performance for each of our current pricrihies

2013 REVIEW

OUR OPERATIONS

Running our stores, offices and distribution centres

has an impact on the environment, and we take our
responstbility to manage and reduce this impact seriously

2013 PRIORITY ENERGY AND GREENHOUSE
GASES (GHGS)

Since 2011, we've reduced energy usage across our UK
operations by around 2% and ous greenhouse gas (GHG)
emissions by 3%, both per m? of floor space This results
from a combination of factors including

~ The continuing roll out of a new shop fit specification,
which reduces energy required for ighting and includes
high efficiency heating and cooling eguipment

- An ongoing programme of bulding smprovements at
our HQ In Street, Somerset

- Improving the efficiency of ighting and equipment
settings at our UK distnbution centre in Street to
reduce energy use

HANOVER DISTRIBUTION CENTRE

In the US, we're progressing towards the completicn of
our new distribution centre In Hanover, Pennsylvania

Thus faciity comes online later n 2014, and at full capacity
holds 10 milion pairs of shoes




The design and development of a brand new facility
gave us the opportunity to minimise its environmental
impact, bultding energy, water and natural resource
saving optiens in from the outset In 2013 it was certified
as meeting the Gold critena of Leadership in Energy and
Environmental Design (LEED), a third party verification
standard for green buldings

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE

We are committed to cperating within the remit of
relevant environmental legislation, and make every effort
to comply around the world In 2013/14 we received one
small fine relating to minor waste storage infringement at
a specific retal store in the UK

IN 2014, WE WILL

— Continue to focus on reducing energy use and our
greenhouse gas emissions across the UK and share with
employees the difference that our actions are making
Measure our US energy usage for the year, gving us a
baseline, to monitor our future energy use aganst
Introduce a new focus on waste reduction, measuring
our impact and identifying opportunities to reduce
waste across our operations

OUR PEOPLE

Our pecple help us to be the world's number one n
everyday footwear, and everyone can play a part in
helping us to be a responsible business

2013 PRICRITY ENGAGING OUR PECPLE IN
BEHAVING RESPONSIBLY

Our recent people surveys have shown us that our people
care about Behaving Responsibly, and are keen to know
more about what we'rs doing in this area In 2013, we
focused on bulding awareness of Behaving Respensibly
with colleagues around the world, and sharing more
information about our ambitions, achievements and
challenges, and how everyone can support our aims

During 2013, we launched the Behaving Responsibly
Network, bringing together ndividuals from across
the business to spread the word about Behaving
Responsibly, champion change and help make it an
everyday part of cur working Iife

Each of the members of the network plays a key role in
demonstrating the importance of Behaving Responsibly,
and we're really pleased 1o have launched ¢ with
ndniduals from a wide range of our regions and functions

LIVING OUR VALUES

Qur Code of Business Ethics, ‘Living our Values’,
provides guidance on the ethical standards that we
expect employees to demonstrate In 2013, we launched
a refreshed communication campaign to reinforce the
importance of reporting concerns about wrongdoing or
inappropnate behaviour to our confidential Speak Up
service This service I1s In place for all employees around
the world to raise 1ssues and to report concerns to an
independent third party

33

EMPLOYEES IN THE COMMUNITY

it's wnportant to us that we contnibute to the communities
we work In, and we encourage our employees to

raise money for the causes that they believe In More
nformation on employee nitiatives 1s included in the

Qur Community section

IN 2014, WE WILL

— Focus on raising awareness and celebrating our
Behaving Responsibly priorties, activities and
achievements with our people around the world

— Continue to develop the Behaving Responsibly
Network, giving more opportunities for employees
around the world to get involved

OUR PRODUCTS

We're commitied to developing products that meet our
consumers’ and customers’ expectations, and doing this
In ways that are efficient and minimise our iImpact on the
environment

2013 PRIORITY RAW MATERIALS

Animal hides are our most mpertant raw matenal The
process of turning them into leather — tanning - can have
impacts on the environment, but we're continually working
to reduce these impacts and keep them to a minimum

We've joined forces with the Leather Working Group
(LWG@), an organisation that brings together brands,
suppliers, manufacturers, pressure groups and cther
stakeholders and whose watchword is ‘improving
Environmental Stewardship’

By pooling our knowledge and expertise, LWG members
are helping to improve the leather ndustry by creating
allgnment on environmental priorities, bullding awarenass
of best practice, and providing guidance for the cn-going
Improvement I managing environmental impacts

In 2013, approximately 55% of leather specified for
our footwear was sourced from tanneries that have
been audited against the Leather Working Group
Environmental Stewardship Protocol

This 1s the first year that we have included our
Americas operations in this % figure — In previous
years we have reported excluding this part of the
business (2012/13 = 80%)

As the LWG Environrnental Stewardship Protocal 1s not
as widely used in our Americas operations, expanding
the scope of our reporting to Include this important part
of our business for 2013/14 has reduced the overall % of
leather sourced from tanneries audited agamst the LWG
protocol to 55%

Our target 1s to source 80% of leather specified for our
footwear globally from tanneres audited against the LWG
Protocol by the end of 2016




behaving responsibly sumvary CONTINUED

2013 PRIORITY PRODUCT PACKAGING
Our shoebox I1s a great example of our commitment to
improving the sustainability of our packaging Where in
the past our standard shoebox contained around 75%
recycled content, it's now been redesigned to increase
the recycled content to 95%

In 2013, we alsc improved the sustanability of the
packaging used to move our products from our UK
distribution centre to stores outside of the UK, maximising
recycled content and reducing the weight of the boxes,
saving around eight tonnes of cardboard

In our Qutlet operations in the UK, we began reusing
the boxes used to deliver shoes from factory to
distnbution centre to move the shoes to stores

This saved approximately 15,000 boxes, which 1s
equivalent to around 10 tonnes of cardboard

USE OF CHEMICALS

We work closely with our suppliers to minimise the use
of potentially hazardous chemicals wherever we can,
and regularly test samples for compliance with restncted
substances requirements Our am Is to ensure the
levels of hazardous chemicals present in our products
are below the minimum levels required by consumer
protection tegislation around the world

IN 2014, WE WILL

- Continue to work towards our target of sourcing 80%
of the leather specified for our footwear globally from
tanneries that have been audited against the Leather
Working Group Environmental Stewardship Protocol
Standardise our use of internal support packaging by
type of product, with the am of reducing the amount
of issue and other matenals used and maximising
recycled content

Look globally at the boxes that we use to move

our products from factones to distnbution centres,
and from distnbution centres to stores, with the am
of maximising recycled content and reducing
packaging weights
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OUR COMMUNITY

It’s important to us that we support charnties and
initratives that enable people to Iive healthy and fulfiling
Ives in the communities that we're a part of

2013 PRIORITY CHARITABLE GIVING
In 2013, we continued partnerships with several
chanties including

MIRACLEFEET

Miraclefeet, our corporate chanty partner, works to give
children in developing countries access to inexpensive
and effective treatment for clubfoot Clubfoot s a
congenital birth defect that causes one or both feet

to turn inwards and backwards, making 1t difficult or
impossible to walk Untreated, it's one of the leading
causes of physical disability

In 2013/14, we donated £97,000 to Miraclefest,
enough to treat more than 640 children This included
a £25,000 donation to support their work in the
Philippines following the destruction caused by
Typhoon Hayan in November 2013

We also ran a donation campaign in alt stores seling
children’s shoes in the USA Consumers donated $1

for each parr of children’s shoes purchased, raising over
£32,000 (approx $52,000)

UNICEF

We're proud to partner with UNICEF on the Shoe

Bz campaign in the UK and Ireland Since 2008,

our employees and consumers have been donating
unwanted shoes to raise money in order to give children
around the world the opportunity to learmn

Using proceeds raised from the sale of donated shoes,
we raised more than £144,000 in 2013 brnging our
cumulative total to over £640,000 since 2008

TRIANGLE INC

Tnangle, a US based chanty, helps people with disabilities
lead more iIndependent lives, through services including

a School-to-Career programme for young adults with
disabities and employment training and planning services

We support Triangle in varous ways, including seling
discount coupons to consumers n US stores over the
holiday season, which raised approx £690,000 (over
$1,150,000) in 2013




SOUL OF AFRICA

Soul of Afnca teaches shoe making skills and provides
sustainable employment opporturities for workers In
several countries in Africa

By purchasing Soul of Afnca products for sale in stores
i the UK and USA, we help generate funds for the
Soul of Afnca Trust The Trust funds projects to assist
orphans and vulnerable children mainly affected by the
AIDS pandemic

In addition, each time we sell a par of Soul of Afnca
shoes in a UK store we make a donation to support the
Trust's work, contrbuting more than £50,000 in 2013/14

TRUSTS ASSOCIATED WITH G&J CLARK LTD
The pnncipal purpose of the Trusts is to benefit current
and past employess, ther familles and the communitias
in which they live The Trusts are assoctated with

C&J Clark Ltd, and are funded independently of the
Company Across all the trusts, grants in excess of

£1 25 millon have been made or offered in the year
ending 31st January 2014

The Clark Foundation makes capital grants for the benefit
of communities in the areas of community welfare,
recreation, education and health In 2013/14 over 160
grants have been made, totalling in excess of £575,000
Other trusts support employees with grants towards
education costs for themselves or therr chitdren In this
area, more than 650 grants have been made in 2013/14,
totalling more than £685,000

EMPLOYEE FUNDRAISING

We encourage our employees to raise money for the
causes they beleve in, and are proud of the contribution
they make to commurities In the 2013/14 financial year,
Clarks employees around the world raised funds for great
causes ncluding Gesanghua Education Aid, a chanty
based in the rural Qinghai province of China which helps
students from poor backgrounds to access education

IN 2014, WE WILL
- Increase our chantable gving danations, giving 0 3%
of 2012/13 pre-tax profits to chanty n 2014, as part of
a long-term commitment to increasing our giving

- Launch an evolution of our chantable gving approach,
enabling employees to have a voice in choosing the
good causes that we support around the world

OUR SUPPLIERS
We attach real mportance to the welfare of our
employees, and those employed by our suppliers

2013 PRIORITY SUPPLIER WORKING
CONDITIONS

White most of the design and development of our
products takes pface within the Clarks business,

we outsource all of the manufactunng We believe it's
our responsibility to understand the welfare and working
cendittons of those who make our products, and we do
this by auditing our supplier factones Qur vendor audit
actwities are a crucial part of giving our consumers,
customers and other stakeholders the confidence that
our products are made in conditions that align wath ther
expectations as reflected in our Code of Practice

Clarks Code of Practice ssts the standards that we
expect of suppliers manufactuning our products

The Code of Practice requres compliance with all legal
and regulatory requiremnents, and supports the core
principles of the United Nations International Labour
Qrganisation (ILO) conventions This has now been
made publicly avalable on the Clarks website

Our audit programme currently covers factories
producing the majonty of Clarks footwear and handbags
as well as selected goods not for resale suppliers in
locations around the world and includes assessment

of social, labour and health & safety standards

In 2013, we continued to extend the scope of our audit
programme o include more suppliers and production
factones During the year we audited factories that
provide 99 3% of our footwear products, including those
made for our Qutlet stores, exceeding the target of 98%
set for the year We also increased the proportion of
non-footwear suppliers audited by mproving our
coverage of factones that manufacture handbags

and selected goods not for resale

IN 2014, WE WILL
— Mantain the level of coverage of our audit programme
to include suppliers producing at least 99% of footwear
— Extend the scope of our audits 1o include the
environmental assessment criteria piloted during 2013
- Extend the scope of coverage te start to include
selected Clarks nominated second ter suppliers
- Extend the scope of our audits to include secunty
cntera relevant to customs trade requirements

FURTHER INFORMATION

For more information or to give feedback on our Behaving
Responsibly strategy, actvties and performance, please
visit www clarks co uk or contact the CSR team via
csr@clarks com




remuneration

It is the policy of the Remuneration Committee to
consider and approve remuneration packages and
other contractual terms that attract, retain and motivate
managers of the calibre required to successiully manage
an international Group of the size and complexity of
C&J Clark Limited The Committee comprises all of the
Non-Executive Directors and 1s chared by Hugh Clark
it 1s responsible for approving an appropriate levet of
remuneration for the Executive Directors within the
principles the Committee has determined in doing

so the Committee aims t¢ ensure that remuneration
packages are balanced, but not excessive, and that
Incentive schemes are structured so that they reflect
the levels generally paid to such executives The
Remuneration Committee includes family Directors

and has strong links to the Family Shareholder Counci!
and as a result shareholder's views on remuneration
are taken into account

In conunction with the formal establishment of the

new global operating model, in the year the commitiee
approved a change to the performance related pay
schemes Both the annual bonus scheme and the Long
Term Incentive Plan were updated to align to Global
business performance Further defaills of these changes
can be found n the Performance Related bonus and
Leng Term incentive Plan sections overleaf

The Committee keeps tself fully imformed of all

relevant developments and best practice in the field

of rermuneration and seeks advice where appropriate
from external adwisers and from the HR Director and

the Company Secretary When approving the revised
schemes the commuttee sought advice from external
adwsers and benchmarked the scheme with the industry
to ensure it was competitive but not excessive
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Emoluments, compensation and leng-term incentives Iin
respect of qualfying services of each person who served
as a Drector dunng the year are lsted in the two tables
opposite

INFORMATION SUBJECT TO AUDIT
The auditors are required to report on the information in
the following sections of the report

— Directors’ remuneration, including descriptions
of the long-term incentives schemes

— Defined benefit pension schemes

— Directors’ pension entitlements

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

It 1s the policy of C&J Clark Limited to 1ssue all new
Executive Directors with twelve month roling service
contracts There are no provisions N Directors’ service
contracts for compensation in respect of early termination
of a contract There 1s however, an obligation to pay for
any notice period waved by the Company All Executive
Drrectors’ service contracts require the Company to give
12 months' notice to terminate the contracts untl the age
of 60, when no notice period Is required Dates of service
contracts for Directors who have served durnng the year
are as follows

- Robin Beacham 1st July 2001
- Melissa Potter 1st June 1998




Directars’ Emoluments

Pertormance-

Salary retatod

Salanes Supplaments Benefits boruses Long Term Total 2014 Totat 2013

£000 £000 £000 £000 Incentve Plan £ 000 £000

Executive Directors
Melssa Potter! 659 399 12 118 119 1,307 1,986
Robin Beacham! 467 31 18 84 88 968 1,446
Non-Executive Directors
Thoras J O'Nedl? 72 - - - - 72 40
Peter Davies® 245 - - - - 245 178
Hugh Glark? 48 - - - - 48 47 ‘.
Nigel Hal® 50 - - - - 50 49
Timothy Campbell 41 - - - - 41 40
Stella Dawid 41 - - - - 41 37

Benefits ansing from employment by the Company relate manly to the prowision of company cars and Yife assurance
1 Robin Beacham and Melissa Potter's salary supplements compensata for restnctions introduced under the 1889 Finance Act on pensions provided through the Fund,

please see page 39

2 Thomas J O'Neill was appanted Charman an 6th December 2013 Of hus remuneration dunng the year £31k was in respect of his role as Charman and £4 1% was in
respect of his role as a Non-Executive Director His annual remuneration as Chairman has been set at £200k
3 Peter Davies resigned as Chairman on 6th December 2013 His remuneration mcludes £76Kk in respect of the unexpired partion of is contract until the AGM

on 2nd May 2014

4 Hugh Clark's salary includes £7k (2013 -£7k) for remuneration n his capacity as charr of the Remuneration Commuttes
5 Nigel Hatl's salary includes £9% (2013 - £9k) for remuneration in his capaacity as char of the Auchit Committee

Long-term Incentive Plans

Provision Provided n Pald in Provislon
brought forward the year the year carmed forward
o TOo £000 £ 000

Executive Directors
Melissa Potter 1,270 118 {730) 659
Robin Beacham 885 88 {503) 470

SALARIES AND BENEFITS

Salanes and benefits for Executive Directors are reviewed
annually and external advice taken as approprate
Drrectors’ remuneration packages are benchmarked
against companies of a simiar size and complexity,
external market conditions and the level of employee pay
Melissa Potter's base salary increased in the year by 3% in
Ine with the average pay increase of UK based employess

PERFORMANCE RELATED BONUSES

Melissa Potter and Robin Beacham participate in an
annual bonus scherne dependent on the financial
performance of the Group compared with budgst
Awards are made on a shding scale up to 60% of salary,
based on Group operating profit less 15% notional
interest on a notional debt amount of 40% of Group
average operating capital For achievement of 85% of
budgeted Group operating profit less notional interest,

a bonus of 15% of salary 1s payable No bonus is payable
if the result 1s lower The bonus payable increases by

1 percentage point for every additional £850,000

by which the actual result exceeds the mmnimum
performance target For achievement of the budgeted
Group operating profit less notional interest, a bonus of
30% of salary 1s payable Thereafter, a 1% increase in
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bonus award i1s payable for every additional £637,500
Increase In the profit after notional interest up to the
maximum 60% of salary at a result 15% above budget
The target 1s denved from the published budget of the
Group for the year This method has been in use for 17
years and was chosen as the most consistent measure
of underlying trading growth In the business Including

the effect of changes in operating capital employed wwithin
the Group

Group operating profit less notional interest equates to
90 1% of target for bonus purposes The bonus payable
15 18 1% of salary and s reflected n the Directors
emoluments table above

LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN

Melssa Potter and Robin Beacham are participants in

this scheme which provides a benefit of up to a maximum
of 3 5 times annual salary dependent on Group profit

after tax compared with the five year strategic plan,

over a three year penod The maximum award 1S payable
if actual profits exceed 120% of strategic plan profits over
the three year performance pernod Ne award i1s payable If
actual profits are less than 85% of strategic plan profits




remuneration REPORT CONTINUED

For profit performance exactly in ine with the strategic
plan over the performance period, sach of the Executive
Directors will recewve a payment of 1 25 times annual
salary Performance penods, each of a three vear
duration, have commenced annually on st February
since 2007 The fifth performance penod came to an

end on 31st January 2014 and awards relating to this
performance penod are made in March The achievement
rate for the performance perod was 88 67% resulting in
an amount payable in the year of 30% of salary

Senior managers and selected managers are members of
the scheme which provides a benefit dependent on the
financial performance compared with the 5 year strategic
plan, over a three year penod The maximum benefit
payable 1s 2 5 times salary for senior managers and 1 5
times salary for managers For profit performance exactly
in ine with the strategic plan over the performance
period, senior managers will receive a payment of 1 0
times annual salary and managers 0 75 times annual
salary The shding scale 1s adjusted accordingly

There 1s one performance perod running currently
commencing 1st February 2012

GLOBAL LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN
Durnng the year the Remuneration Committee approved
the new Long-Term Incentive Plan for the pericd
beginning 1st February 2013 This 1s a global cash-based
plan and has the same measures and same critena for
entry for all global participants in the plan The committee
sought advice on the scheme from external consultants
and benchmarked the plan against the industry to
ensure that It was a compebtive and attractive scheme
for participants The plan provides a benefit of up to a
maximum of three tmes annual salary dependent on
Group profit after tax and return on capital employsd
compared with the five year strategic ptan, over a three
year pencd Post-tax profit 1s the basis for 80% of any
potential award and return on capital employed 1s the
basis for 20% of any potential award The maximum
award s payable when Group profit after tax exceeds
120% and return on capital employed exceeds 24 5%
over the three year performance period No award 1s
payable when actual profits are less than 85% of the
strategic plan and return on capital employed 1s below
17 3% The return on capital employed measure will not
be payable If actual profits are less than 85% For profit
performance exactly in ine with the strategic plan over
the performance penod, each of the Executive Directors
will receive a payment of 1 2 times annual salary
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There are two performance periods running currentty
commencing 1st February 2013 and 1st February 2014

Senior managers and selected managers are members
of the scheme which provides a benefit dependent on
the financial performance compared with the five year
strategic plan, over a three vear penod The benefit
payable 15 based on the iIndividual’s role with the
maximum benefit being between 0 5 trmes and 2 25
times annual salary For profit perfforrmance exactly in line
with the strategic plan over the performance penod, the
benefit payable will be between 0 2 and 0 9 times annual
salary The shding scale 1s adjusted accordingly

SHARE INCENTIVE PLAN

Dunng the year the Group operated a Share Incentive
Plan Under ths plan, eligible employees may save up

to 1% of ther gross earnings which will be used to
purchase ordinary shares in the Company One matching
(free) share will be allocated for every partnership share
purchased by an employee These shares rank for
dividend and are held n trust for a minimum of three
years before being transferred to the employee

TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURN

Total Shareholder Return (TSR) 15 a performance measure
based on the market value of aninvestment in shares of a
company over a given pernod, inthis case, five years TSR
assumes that all dvidends are re-invested and any nghts
1Issues taken up It s assumed that the buyback proceeds
were also re-invested n shares The TSR graph I1s based
on an nitial purchase of 100 shares In C&J Clark Limited
on 1st February 2009 Comparison shown 1s against the
rmovements in the FTSE 250 share index as the market
capitalisation, based on the share price calculated
bi-annually by PncewaterhouseCoopers, would make
C&J Clark Limited a FTSE 250 company

TSR vs FTSE 250 TSR —
FTSE 250 emmm—
£200
£150 /4
£100 /\/
£50
£0
2008 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014




The comparison shows C&J Clark Limited outperforms
the market trend from 2009 to 2014 The TSR shows
steady growth whilst the FTSE 250 ts more volatile
showing a decline from 2009 to 2010 but returning to the
levels expenenced at the begnning of the five year penod
by 2012 At 31st January 2014 the TSR over the previous
five years 1s more than the return given by the FTSE 250
if £100 had been invested in C&J Clark Limited shares

in 2008 it would now be worth £186, whereas the same
amount invested in FTSE 250 companies ovar the same
perod would now, on average, be worth £154

TSR 15 a performance measure used predominantly for
publicly traded companies and thus may not be an entirely
reliable measure for a private company ke C&J Clark
Limited The external share valuation conducted by
PricewaterhouseCoopers assumes a willing buyer and
seller, 1s based on a minimal volume of transactions, and
does not fully take account of external market forces

DIRECTORS’ PENSION ENTITLEMENTS

The C&J Clark Pension Fund (“the Fund”) 1s a
contrnbutory occupational pension scheme governed
by an ndependent trust, the rules of which now Include
special provisions for Fixed Protection Members

Melissa Potter and Robin Beacham participated in the
Fund unti! 5th Aprit 2012 when they opted to become
Fixed Protection Members and accrue no further
benefits The pensions valued at 5th April 2012 will be
increased annually up to the 5th Apnl pror to retrement,
by reference to the CPl measure of inflation

Therr normal retirement age under the Fund 15 60 and
early retirement 1s permitted at the age of 55

For death before retirement, a capital sum equal to

four ttmes salary 1s payable A spouse’s pension IS also
payable and this continues to be imited by reference to
the legacy HMRC Earnings Cap restnction For death in
retirement, a spouse’s pension of 50% of the member's

Post-retirement pension increases are guaranteed at the
rate of price inflation subject to a limit of 8 5% per annum
compound between the date of retrement and esach
annual pension review

The Group has awarded salary supplements to refiect
restrictions placed on pensions provided through the

Fund by the continued application of hmits introduced
under the 1989 Finance Act

The salary supplement for Melissa Potter and Robin
Beacham are included n the Directors’ emoluments
table on page 37

The assumptions underiying the transfer values are
market dependent and therefore change from year
to year

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The remuneration of the Chairman 1s determined

by the Committee The Charman has a three year
service contract The Executive Directors determine
remuneration of the other Non-Executive Directors of
the Company Remuneration consists of fees far therr
services in connection with Board and Board Committee
meetings They do not have contracts of service and
must retire after nine years' service or such other period
as the Company agrees by spectal resolution They are
not eligible for pension scheme membership They do
not participate in the Group's bonus scheme or other
incentive schames

This report will be laid before the shareholders for
approval at the Annual General Mesting to be held
on 2nd May 2014 At the Annual General Meeting on
3rd May 2013 99 96% of votes cast by shareholders
were \n favour of approving the BRemuneration Report
for the year ended 31st January 2013

On behalf of the Board

pre-commutation pension is payable In the event of HUGH CLARK
death after leaving service but pnior to cormmencement CHAIR OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
of pension, a spouse’s pension of 50% of the accrued 218T MARCH 2014
preserved pension 1s payable In all crcumstances,
children’s allowances are also payable up to the age of 18
Defined Benefit Pension Schemes
Caprtal value?
Increase in relating to
Increase in accrued pension NCIeAse i
Normal Aocrued Accrued accried penson over tha year 1o accrued pension
Age at Retrsment pension at pension at overtheyearto  31s!January 2014 less Darector's
31st January 2014 age’  Jstdanuary 2013 JistJanuary 2014 31st January 2014 {excluding inflation)  own contribubons
£ 000 Years £000 €000 £000 €000 pa 000
Melissa Potter 46 60 86 4 909 45 00 00
Robin Beacham 54 80 86 4 9049 45 00 00

1 The Normal Retirement Age for the Directors 1S the earfiest age at which they can take ther benefits without consent and without reduction There are no additional

banefits to which either Diractor wauld bacome entitled 1o on early retrement

2 For ihe purpase of this disclosure the accrued pension 1s valued using a fived facior of 20 1 Thencrease in capital value excludes any Increase which 1 directly
attnbutabla to the revaluation of the pension i recogniion of nflation as measured by the Consumer Pnces Indeax (CP)
The base penod used for the revaluation 1$ set out in the niles of the C&J Clark Pension Fund and in Statutory Regulations
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MELISSA POTTER joined the Group
as a graduate in 1988 and carried
out vanous management roles before
becoming Managing Director of

the UK Dwmsion n 2002 She was
appointed to the Board as Managing
Director, Clarks International on

21st June 2006 and was appomted
Chuef Executive on 1st April 2010

board orF birRecTORS

THOMAS J O'NEILL was appointed
to the Board as an independent
Nen-Executive Director on 10th May
2004 On 6th December 2013 he
was appointed the Non-Executive
Charman of the Company He has
more than 25 years' expenence

in international retathing and brand
management, most recently as
Chief Executive and Director of
Harry Winston, Inc whare he also
concurrently held the position of
President and Director of Harry
Winston Diamond Corporation
Prior to Harry Winston, he was
Worldwide President of Burberry,
Chief Executive at LVMH Fashion
Dwision in the Amencas, Chief
Executive of LVMH Jewellery
Dvision, Chief Executive of Marc

Jacobs and, Executive Vice-President

of Trffany & Company He currently
serves as an iIndependent Non-
Executive Director on the Board of
Aurum Holdings Ltd which owns
Mappin & Webb, Goldsmiths and
Watches of Switzerland

42

ROBIN BEACHAM jained the Group
in 1990 from Arthur Andersen and
carried out anumber of financial
management roles before becoming
Financial Centroller in 1996 He was
appointed to the Board as Finance
Director on 28th June 2001




STELLA DAVID was appointed to

the Board as an independent Non-
Executive Director on 1st March 2012
She has over 25 years' expenence

in branded consumer goods, with

a focus on strategy and brand
management She is currently the
CEQ of Willam Grant & Sons, a family-
owned, international spints company
and prior to that was the Global Chief
Marketing Officer of Bacard Ltd

She 1s a Non-Executive Director of
HomeServe plc and has also served
as a Non-Executive Director of
Nationwide Building Society

TIMCTHY CAMPBELL was appointed
as a Non-Executive Director on 6th
May 2010 He was a member of

the Family Sharehclder council from
2007 until joining the Board He

1s Managing Director of Maymont
Caprtal Advisors AG, where he
advises venture capital and private
equity funds on mvestments in
emerging markets

NIGEL HALL was appointed as an
independent Non-Executive Director
on 1st March 2006 and is Charman
of the Audit Committee and of the
Share Valuation Committee of the
Board Nige! 1s a chartered accountant
who qualified with Price Waterhouse
before joining the fashion retaller The
Burton Group plc (renamed Arcadia
Group plc in 1998) where he served
as Finance Director from 1997 until
2003 Nigel 1s also the Non-Executive
Chairman of Countrywide Farmers
plc, Non-Executive Chairman of
Michelmores LLP and a Director of
Exeter Rugby Group PLC
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HUGH CLARK was appointed as

a Non-Executive Director on 9th

May 2005 He was a member of the
Family Shareholder Council fromits
inception in 18893 until joining the
Board He joined Clarks as a graduate
In 1985 and spent eleven years in
the husiness before joming Rohan in
1996 He became a Director in 1997
and was Managing Director of Rohan
from 2001 until 20G7

COMPANY SECRETARY

DEBORAH WAKEFORD joined

as Group Director of Legal and
Company Secretary on 10th !
December 2012, having previously
worked as in-house counsel for
various businesses including
Compass Group PLC and RAC
PLC She s a commercial lawyer
with international expernence and
a particular interest i consumer
matters, intellectual property and
corporate governance




directors’

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Directors present therr Annual Repoert to shareholders
together with the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31st January 2014

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The pnncipal activities of the Company and its'
subsidianes are worldwide shoe retaling, wholesaling
and related trades Further detals of the operations
and the trading results are set out on pages 10 to 23
The profit after tax for the Group for the year was
£88 7m A list of the major overseas subsidianes of
the Group can by found on page 74

A review of the Group’s performance during the year,
expected future developments and principal nsks and
uncertainties facing the Group are contained in the
Strategic Report

DIRECTORS

The current Directors of the Group are listed on pages 42
and 43 Peter Dawies resigned as Chairman of the Board
with effect from 6th December 2013 Thomas J O'Nell,
an existing independent Non-Executive Director was
appointed Chairman of the Board on the recommendation
of a Nominations Committee that was established

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association, Thomas J O’Neill and Hugh Clark retire
by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
Both seek re-election At the last Annual General
Meeting shareholders approved an extenston to the
term of appointment of one year for Thomas J O'Nelll
which will expire In May 2014 In accordance with

the Company's Articles, the penod of time whilst
Thomas J O’Nelll serves as Charman of the Board
will not count towards this extended penod

Hugh Clark 1s due to resign from the Board having sat as
a Non-Executive Direcior for the maximum nine year term
provided for in the Articles of Association The Board will
be proposing a special resolution at the Annual General
Meeting to allow Hugh's appointment to be extended for
a further year

Details of the Director’s service contracts are given in the
Remuneration Report on pages 36 to 39
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SHARE REGISTER

As at 31st January 2014 the composition of the share
register of C&J Clark Lirmited was

Family 84 1%
Institutions 33%
Share Schemes 12%
Trusts associated with C&J Clark Limuted 4 0%
Employees 7 4%
Total 100 0%

SHARE BUYBACK
There was no share buybacks in the year

FIXED ASSETS

In the opinion of the Directors, the market value of land,
on an existing use basis, 15 not significantly different to
book value

EMPLOYEES

The Board believes that the principle of equalty of
treatment and opportunity 1s of fundamental importance
Its long held aim s to provide just and fair treatment for
allemployees Inaccordance wih this policy, the only
personal attributes which will be taken into account in
making decisions about employees are those which
relate directly to actual or potential performance

The gender diversity of the Group as at 31st January 2014
was as follows

Fermale Male
Board 29% 71%
Senmor management 27% 73%
Alt employees B87% 33%

Throughout the Group, procedures for consultation

with, and the involvement of, employees are in operation
as appropnate to the circumstances of the individual
businesses Information on matiers of concern to
employees are given through a vanety of presentations,
bnefings, bulletins and reports




THE ENVIRONMENT

The Group recognises that care and concern for the
environment and the community are fundamental parts
of the Group’s strategy It 1s the Group's Intention to stnve
continuously to mmimise any adverse environmental
impact of business actwvities, to comply with all relevant
environmental fegislation and to promote a canng attrtude
to the environment amongst its employees A statement
of commitment from the Group 1n #ts environmental policy
1S shown on pages 32 to 35

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS

The interests of Directors In the share capital of the
Company are shown in the table below A list of
transactions with related parties 1s set out in note 21

to the financial statements There were no changes to
Director’'s share interests between the end of the financial
year and 9th March 2014 (being one month before the
date of the notice of the Annual General Meeting)

Directors’ Interests

At 31st January 2014 AL 31st Jaruary 2013

MNigel Hall 3,000 3,000
Robin Beacham 4,945 1,026
Thomas J O’'Neill - -
Hugh Clark 331,172 323,172
Melissa Potter 10,621 2,228
Timothy Campbell 2,588,385 2,622,609
Stella David - -
DONATIONS

Donations for chantable purposes made by the Group
dunng the year amounted to £320,000 No donations
were made for political purposes

CREDITOR PAYMENT POLICY

The Group's policy 1s to use standard payment terms,
payment being at the end of the monith following the
involce date, except for goods for resale which are
generally 30 days For all trade creditors 1t 1s the
Group's policy to

- Settle terms of payment with suppliers

— Ensure that suppliers are aware of the terms
of payment

- Make every effort to meet agresd payment dates
provided that the agreed terms and conditions
have been met by the suppliers
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group 1s committed to maintaning a igh standard
of corporate governance that reflects both the principles
of best practice that are set out in the Code and the
internal governance framework under which it operates
and manages the Company, its subsidiaries and all of
its business operations, for the long-term benefit of all
shareholders The Corporate Governance report 1S set
out on pages 26 to 29 The Board considers that this
Annual Report and the accounts are farr, balanced and
understandable and provide the necessary information
for shareholders to assess the Company’s performance,
business model and strategy

GOING CONCERN

The Directors have a reasonable expectation that the

Group and the Company have adeguate resources to

continue in operational existence for the foreseeable

future Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going

concern basis in preparng the financial statements \

DIRECTOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES ‘
So far as the Directors are aware, there 1s no relevant

audit information {nformaton needed by the Group’s

auditors in connection with preparing their report) of

which the Group's auditors are unaware Each Director

has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken

as a Director in order to make themselves aware of

any relevant audit nformaton and to establish that the

Group's auditors are aware of that information

AUDITCRS

A resolution to re-appoint KPMG LLP as auditors of
the Company and a resclution to enable the Directors
to determine ther remuneration will be proposed at the
Annual General Meeting

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held
at 11 30 am on 2nd May 2014 at the Company’s offices
at 40 High Street, Strest, Somerset, BA16 0EQ

O d

By Order of the Board

DEBORAH WAKEFORD
COMPANY SECRETARY
218T MARCH 2014




STATEMENT OF

directors’
responsibility

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’
RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT
OF THE ANNUAL REPORT AND
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are respensible for prepanng the Annual
Report and the financial staterments in agcordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year Under that law they
have elected to prepare the Group and parent Company
financial statements in accordance with UK Accounting
Standards and applicable law (UK Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice)

Under company law the Directors must not approve

the financial statements unless they are satisfied that
they give a true and farr view of the state of affairs of the
Group and parent Company and of their profit or loss for
that period In preparing each of the Group and parent
Company financial statements, the Directors are
required to

- select sutable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently,

— make Judgements and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent,

- state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards
have been followed, subject to any matenal departures
disclosed and explaned in the financial statements,

- prepare the financial statements on the going concern
basis unlgss It I1s inappropriate to presume that the
Group and the parent Company will continue in
business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the parent Company's transactons and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position

of the parent Company and enable therm to ensure that
its financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006 They have general responsibility for taking such
steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the
assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and
other irregularities

The Directors have decided to prepare voluntarly a
Remuneration Report n accordance with Schedule 8 o
The Large and Medium-sizec Compantes and Groups
{Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 {St 2008 No
410) made under the Companes Act 2008, as If those
reguirements were to apply to the Company




independent auditor’s REPORT

We have audited the financial statements of C&J Clark
Limited for the year ended 31st January 2014 set out on
pages 50 to 73 The financial reporting framework that
has been applied In therr preparation 1s applicable law
and UK Accounting Standards (UK Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice)

In addition to our audit of the financial statements, the
Directors have engaged us to audit the information in
the Remuneration Report that 1s descrnbed as having
been audited, which the Directors have decided to
prepare (N addition to that required to be prepared)

as If the Gompany were required to comply with the
reguirements of Schedule 8 to The Large and Medium-
sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports)
Regulaticns 2008 (8l 2008 No 410} made under the
Companies Act 2006

This report 1s made solely to the Company's members,
as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2008 Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s
memibers those matters we are regured to state to them
in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company
and the Company's members, as a body, for our audit
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF
DIRECTORS AND AUDITOR

As explamed more fully i the Directors’ Responsibilities
Statement set out on page 46, the Directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
and for being satisfied that they give a true and farr view
Our responsbility 1s to audit, and express an opinion on,
the financial statements in accordance with applicable
law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the
Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

SCOPE OF THE AUDIT OF THE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A description of the scope of an audtt of financial
statements 1s provided on the Financial Reporiing
Council's website at www frc org uk/auditscopeukpnvate

OPINION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In our opirion the financial staterments

give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's

and of the parent Company's affarrs as at 31st January
2014 and of the Group's profit for the year then ended,
have been properly prepared in accordance with UK
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and

have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006

OPINION ON OTHER MATTER PRESCRIBED
BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006 AND UNDER
THE TERMS OF OUR ENGAGEMENT

In our opinion

the part of the Remuneration Report which we were
engaged to audit has been properly prepared in
accordance with Schedule 8 to The Large and Mediurn
Sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports)
Regulations 2008 made under the Companies Act
20086, as If those requirements were to apply to the
Company, and

the information grven in the Strategic Report and the
Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with the
financial statements

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO |
REPORT BY EXCEFTION

We have nothing to report in respect of the following
matters where the Companies Act 2006 and the terms

of our engagement recure us 1o report to you i, in our |

opINIon

adequate accounting records have not been kept by
the parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by
us, or

the parent Company financial statements and the part
of the Remuneration Report which we were engaged
to audit are not in agreement with the accounting
records and returns, or

certamn disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified
by law are not made, or

we have not received all the information and

DREW CAMPBELL-ORDE

EXW rfquwe for our audit |
|
\
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(SENIOR STATUTORY AUDITCR)

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

100 Temple Strest, Bristol BS1 6AG

21st March 2014
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GROUP PROFT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

For the year ended 31st January 2014

2014 2013
Notes £m £m
Turnover 1(b) 1,546 6 1,463 9
Less Jomnt Venture 1) 56) 33
Group Turnover 1(b) 1,541 0 1,460 6
Costs less other iIncome 2{a) {1,411 5) {1,331 7}
1295 1289
Long-term incentive schemes 2(a) (11) B 6)
Group Operating profit 2(a} 128 4 1223
Share of Operating Loss in
Jont Venture 2{) {0 6) 07)
Profit on disposal of fixed assets - -
Profit before interest 1@ 127 8 121 6
Other net finance costs 3 (8 0) 8 0)
, Profit before taxation 1198 1136
Taxation 4 (31 1) 317
Profit for the financial year 887 819
Earnings per ordinary share 6 149 3p 137 8p

The notes on pages 54 to 73 form part of these financial statements
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BALANCE SHEETS

As at 31st January 2014
Group Group Company
2014 2013 204 2013
Notes £m m £m £m
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 7 12 05 - -
Tangible assets 8(a) 3093 2847 - -
Investments
Joint Ventures ~ Share of Gross Assets 41 42 - -
- Share of Gross Liabilities 4 4) 35 - -
- Net Investment (0 3) 07 - -
Other 9 17 23 791 788
3119 2882 791 788
Current assets
Stock 10 417 2 3755 - -
Debtors 11 1618 175 4 4680 3869
Cash at bank and i hand 617 845 228 47
6407 635 4 490 8 3916
Crediors — amountis falling due within one year 12 (259 5) {263 0} {345 0) (297 8}
Net current assets 381 2 3724 1458 38
Total assets less current habilities 693 1 660 6 2249 1726
Creditors — ameunts falling due after mors than one year 13 (79 5) {81 8) (72 4) 66 4)
Provisions for llabilities and charges 14 (27 4) {29 5) - —
Net assets excluding pension hability 586 2 549 3 1525 1062
Pension hability 20 (80 4) (78 1) - -
Net assets including pension liability 505 8 471 2 1525 1082
Capital and reserves
Called-up share capital 16 594 584 594 594
Share premium account 17 08 08 08 08
Capital redemption reserve 17 181 181 181 181
Merger reserve 17 151 151 - -
Profit and loss account 17 4124 3778 742 279
Equity shareholders' funds 5058 471 2 1525 106 2

The notes on pages 54 to 73 form part of these financial statements

The financial statements of C& J Clark Ltd, registered number 3314066, were approved by the Board of Directors and signed on

therr behalf on 21st March 2014

THOMAS J O'NEILL

ROBIN BEACHAM 9 ~

{dentin.
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GROUP CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 31st January 2014

2014 2013

Notes £m £m

Cash flow from operating actvities 22 925 107 2
Returns on investments and servicing of finance 23(a) (1.9} 22
Taxation 217} (18 6)
Capital expendsture and financial investment 23(b} (64 4) (94 5)
45 .1
Equity dwvidends paid (24.4} (22 3)
Net cash outilow befare financing (19 9) (30 4)
Financing 23(c} 60 41)
Decrease in cash in the year (139 (34 5)

RECONCILIATION OF NET CASH FLOW
TO MOVEMENT IN NET BORROWINGS
For the year ended 3ist January 2014

2014 2013

Notes £m £m

Decrease in cash in the year (139 (34 5}

Cash flow from (increase)/decrease in debt 23(c) (6 0) 41
Change In net borrowings resulting from cash flows (199) (30 4)
Cumrency translation adjustments (05) 06
Increase in net borrowings in the year (20 4) (29 8)
Opening net borrowings (39 3) (9 5)
Closing net borrowings 24 597) (39 3}

The notes on pages 54 to 73 form part of thase financial statements
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GROUP STATEMENT OF TOTAL

RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES

For the year ended 31st January 2014

2014 2013
£m Em
Profit for the financial year 887 819
Cumency translation adjustments (14 0) (12)
Actuanal loss on pension schemes {net of deferred taxation) (16 0) {11 8)
Corporation tax credit ansing on pensicn contnbutions in excess of current year pension charge 45) {4 B6)
Related deferred tax charge on pension contnbutions in excess of current year pension charge 45 416
Total recognised gains and losses ansing during the financial penod 887 691
IN EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS
For the year ended 31st January 2014
Group Group Company Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
£m £m £m £m
Total recogrised gains and losses ansing dunng the financial year 587 69 1 704 02)
Dividends pard 24 4) (22 3) (24 4) {22 3)
Share-based payment 03 02 03 02
Net increase in equity shareholders’ funds dunng the financial penod 346 47 0 46 3 (22 3)
Opening equity shareholders’ funds 4712 424 2 106 2 128 5
Closing equity shareholders' funds 5058 471 2 1525 106 2
GROUP NOTE OF HISTORICAL
COST PROFITS AND LOSSES
For the year ended 31st January 2014
2614 2013
£m &m
Profit on ordinary actvities before taxation 119.8 113 6
Diiference between histoncal cost depreciation
charge and actual depreciation charge for the year - —
Historical cost profit on ordinary activities before taxation 1198 113 6
Historical cost profit for the year retained after taxation 887 819

The notes on pages 54 to 73 forn pant of these financial statements
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accounting POLICIES

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared under
the hustoncal cost convention as modified to include
the revaluation of freehold and long leasehold and
and buldings and in accordance with applicable
accounting standards

The financial statements for the Company and all
matenal subsidtanes are drawn up to the nearest
Saturday to the 31st January, In line with retall industry
practice The year to 31st January 2014 comprses

52 weeks (2013 — 53 weeks)

These financial statements have been prepared
under the going concern basis as discussed In the
Directors’ Report

The following accounting policies have been appled
consistently throughout the year There have been
no changes In accounting policies since last year

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The Group financial statements compnse a consolidation
of the financial statements of the parent Company and all
of its subsidianes, together with the Group’s share of the
results of its joint ventures The principal subsidiaries are
listed on page 74

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
Investments in subsidiary companies are stated at
cost less provisions for any imparment i1 value

JOINT VENTURES

A joint venture 1s an undertaking in which the Group
has a long-term interest and over which it exercises
jont control The Group's share of the profits less
losses of joint ventures i1s included in the consolidated
profit and loss account and its interest in ther net
assets, 1s included in investrments i the consolidated
balance sheet

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Sales dunng the normal course of business are recognised

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

Assets and liabiliies denominated in foreign currencies
are translated into sterling at the rates of exchange ruling
at the balance sheet date Profit and iosses of overseas
subsidianes are translated into starling at average rates
of exchange

Exchange dhfferences arising on the retranstlation of

the opening net assets of overseas subsidiares, less
exchange differences ansing on related foreign currency
borrowings, are taken to reserves and disclosed in the
Group Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses
on page 53, together with any related tax charges or
credits All other exchange differences are recognised

In the Profit and Loss Account

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group uses financial Instruments to manage its
exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange
rates Currently the only instruments used are forward
currency contracts and currency option contracts

Gains and losses on forward confracts and options,
entered into as hedges of future purchases and sales
denominated in foreign currency, are carrnied forward
and taken to the Profit and Loss Account on matunty to
match the underlying transactions The Group has taken
advantage of the exemption avalable for short-term
debtors and creditors

FIXED ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION
Depreciation 1s provided on all tangible fixed assets,
excepting freshold land and assets Iin the course of
construction, In order to wnite off the original cost,
less estimated residual value, evenly over the average
expected useful life of the asset as follows

Freehold and long leasehold
buldings

Short leasehold property

50 years

lower of 14 years or
the Iife of the lease
or the penod to the

first rent review

on legal transfer of title, and are accounted for net of sales
discounts, sales taxes and returned goods

Profits on sales of property are recognised on completion,
unless the exchange of contracts is unconditional In
which case the profit 1s recognised at that stage

Rental income 1s accounted for on a recevable basis
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Plant, machinery and fixtures 3 - 20 years
Motor vehicles 3 - 5years
Computer hardware 3 - 10 years

CAPITALISATION OF SOFTWARE COSTS
Software costs are capitalised and amorhised over three
to ten years Where appropnate these costs nclude
elements of fees paid to external consultants




LEASED ASSETS

Fixed assets held under finance leases have been
captalsed and depreciated over their expected useful
Iives The related lease cbhgations have been included
in creditors Fhe finance charges have been charged

to the Profit and Loss Account over the pnimary pencd
of the lease Operating lease rentals have been charged
to the Profit and Loss Account as incurred

INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Trademarks are stated at purchase cost and amortised
over a pericd of 20 years

When a franchisee enters into an agreement with the
Group to operate an international franchise store, under
the terms of the agreement the Group may pay the
franchisee a contribution as consideration for agreeing to
the terms of the agreement in respect of the opening and
operation of the store, Including a minimum purchasing
requirement This contribution s capitalised as a franchise
licence and the cost 1s amortised over the length of the
agreement which 1s five years

LEASE INCENTIVES

Where the Group receives an incentive to take on a
property lease by way of a capital contribution or a
discounted or free rental penod, the benefit 1s spread
over the earlier of the penod to the first rent review or
to the end of the lease as a reduction in rental costs

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
All expenditure on research and development Is written
off in the year in which it 1s incurred

STOCK
Stock has been stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value

DEFERRED TAXATION

Full provision 1s made for deferred tax assets and habihties
ansing from timing differences between the recognition

of gans and losses in the financial statements and ther
recognition in a tax computation Deferred tax 1s not
recognised on permanert differences such as revaluation
gains, gams rolled over into new assets, and unremitted
overseas earnings

PENSION COSTS

The cost of providing pension benefits has been charged
to the Profit and Loss Account in accordance with the
requirements of FRS 17 ‘Retirement Benefits’
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Group operates an Al Employee Share Incentive

Plan (SIP) Under the scheme employees are given a free
matching share for each partnership share purchased at
market value This has been accounted for under FRS 20
Share-based payments Under the standard the matching
shares qualfy as equity-settled share-based payments to
be recogmised at farr value at the date of grant Effectively
the farr value of a matching share 1s the cost of the
partnership share The cost of the share-based payments
must be spread over the peniod until the shares are cwned
by the employee (the vesting penod) The vesting period
for the matching shares i1s four years This has resulted in
a current year charge of £0 3m (2013 - €0 2m)

COMPANY PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

In accordance with Section 408 of the Companies Act
2006, a separate Profit and Loss Account has not been
published for the Company




NOTES TO THE f1nancial statements

In these notes to the financial statements, the headings ‘2014" refer to the year ended 31st January 2014 or the balance

sheet as at 31st January 2014 and the headings ‘2013’ refer to the year ended 31st January 2013 or the balance sheet as

at 31st January 2013

1 Analysis of turnover, profit and capital employed

The turnover and profits of the Group denve from its actmties in the shoe trade

a) Analysis of profit by ultimate geographical market

Profit before

Proft before

interest and interest and
taxation taxation
2014 203
£m £m
(Restated)
UK & ROI 1031 84 8
Amencas 722 821
Eurcpe 308 352
Asia Pacific 353 294
Group items (113 0) (119 2)
Group operating profit 1284 1223
Share of Joint Venture
Asia Pacific (06) 07
Profit before interest and tax 127 8 1216
Comparatives in the table above have been restated to reflect the new regional structure
Group items compnse group and enabling function overheads, group footwear rtems and group non footwear items
b) Analysis of turnover and ¢apital employed
Tumover by Turnover by Tumaover by Turnover by Capntal Capital
uftimate utimate geograptucal geographical employed by empioyed by
geagraphical geographvcal area of area of geographlcal geographcal
market market orgin origin area area
2014 2012 2014 2013 2014 2013
£m £m £m £m €m £m
{Restated) {Restated) {Restated)
UK & ROI 6446 6235 7836 7630 309.2 2806
Amencas 6259 688 3 6140 5703 s 288 2
Europe 1455 143 4 702 641 192 202
Asia Pacific 1250 105 4 732 632 155 139
Group turnover 1,541 0 1,460 6 1,541 0 1,460 6 665 6 602 9
Share of Joint Venture
Asia Pacific 56 33 56 33 03) 07
1,546 6 1,463 9 1,546 6 1,4639 6653 803 6
Comparatves In the table above have been restated to reflect the new regional structure
c) Reconciliation of capital employed and net assets
2014 2013
£m £m
Capital employed (see note 1{b}) 665 3 603 6
Net cash (see note 24) (59 7) (393
Deferred taxation {(see note 15) (19 4) {150
Pension liability {see note 20) (80 4) (78 1)
Net assets 5058 471 2
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2 Operating profit and costs

a) Costs less other ncome

Total Total
2014 2013
£m Em
Turnover 1,541 0 14606
Cost of sales (790 5) {751 7)
Gross profit 7505 708 9
Distnbution costs 41986) (365 9)
Administrative costs (202 5) {220 7)
Group operating profit 1284 122 3
Administrative expenses include the cost of long-term incentive schemes as follows
om “om
Long-term Incentive Plan 16 35
Clarks Compames North America Incentive Plan (05) 31
11 66
These schemaes are detailed in the Remuneration Report on pages 36 to 39
b) Other costs charged in amving at operating profit include
2014 2013
£m £m
Bepreciation and impairments of owned assets 354 306
Auditor's remuneration
Audit of these financial statements 06 06
Amounts recewvable by auditor in respect of
Other services 01 o1
Operating lease rentals
Land and buldings 872 94 5
Plant and equipment 18 21
Cperating lease rental iIncome
Land and buldings (2 6) 32
Share-based payment
Equity-settled 03 02
Parent Company audit fees were paid by a subsidiary undertaking n both years
¢) Average number of full-time and part-time employees
2014 2013
Number Number
Sales and distribution 14,400 14,208
Administration 1,775 1,672
16,175 15,878

The average number of employees has been calculated on a monthly weighted average The comparative has been restated

to show actual number of employees In the pnor year a full tme equivalent (FTE) measure was reported The total number

of employees at the year end was 15,788 (2013 — 15,888)
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NOTES TO THE financial statements CONTINUED

2 Qperating profit and costs continued

d) Employment costs in respect of the foregoing

2014 2013
£m £m
Wages and salanes 2271 227 2
Social secunity costs 297 29 3
Pension current service cost -~ defined benefit scheme (see note 20) 127 123
Pension contnbutions — defined contribution scheme (see note 20) 12 13
Long-term incentive schemes — (see note 2(a)) 11 66
2718 276 7
e) Aggregate emaluments of the Directors
2014 2013
£m £m
Non-Executive Directors’ fees and benefits 05 04
Executve Directors’ services
Salanes and benefits 21 23
Long-term incentives 0.2 11
28 38
More detalled information concerning Directors’ share entittements and emoluments, including long-term incentive schemes,
1s shown in the Remuneration Report on pages 36 to 39
f) Share of Operating Loss in Joint Venture
2014 2ma3
£m £m
Share of Operating Loss of Indian Joint Venture, Clarks Future Footwear Limited {0 6) o7
{0 6) ©7n
Share of Operating Loss in the Joint Venture represents 50% of the results of Clarks Future Footwear Umited Clarks Future
Footwear Limited began trading in Apnl 2011
3 Other net finance costs
2014 2013
£m £m
Interest payable on bank loans and overdrafts 32 25
Interest recewvable (0 4) (0 3)
Net interest cost on assets and iiabilities of pension scheme (see note 20) 50 57
Group 78 79
Jont Venturs 02 o1
80 80
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4 Taxation an profit on ordinary activities

a) Analysis of charge In the year

2014 2013
£m £
Current taxation
UK taxation
UK corporation tax at 23 2% (2013 — 24 3%) 175 16 1
Adjustments in respect of pnor years (0 5) 0 8)
Total UK taxation 170 153
Overseas taxation
Current taxation on income for the year 50 69
Adjustments in respect of pnor years @1 34)
Total overseas taxation 49 35
Tax credit on pension contributions recognised N reserves 44 46
Total current taxation 263 23 4
Movement in deferred taxation
Effective change in tax rate {0 5) © 3}
Adjustment in respect of pror years (02) 40
Other onginaton and reversal of timing differences 55 46
Total deferred taxation (see note 15) 48 83
Taxation on profit on ordinary activities 311 N7
b) Factors affecting tax charge
The taxation assessed for the year 1s higher than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK which 1s 23 2% (2013 ~ 24 3%)
The differences are explained below
2014 2013
£m £m
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 119.8 113 6
At standard rate of corporation tax in the UK 27.8 27 6
Higher taxation rates on overseas earnings 37 4.9
Depreciation on tems not qualfying for capital allowances 08 0.7
Overseas taxation losses 07) © 8
Adjustments in respect of pnor years {13) 0.5)
Other 08 0.2}
311 37
Movement in deferred taxaton {4 8) 8.3)
Total current taxation (see note 4(a)} 263 23.4
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NOTES TO THE financial statements CONTINUED

5 Dvidends pad

2014 2013
£€m £m

Equrty dwidends pad in the year
Final ordinary share dividend for the year ended 31st January 2013 of 30 Op (2013 - 27 5p} 178 16 3
Intenm ordinary share dividend for the year ended 31st January 2014 of 11 Op (2013 —10 0p) 66 60
| 244 223

The final ordinary share dvidend proposed for the year ended 31st January 201415 33 Op per share (2013 — 30 Op)

6 Earnings per ordinary share

Basic earnings per ordinary share have been calculated by dmvding the profit after taxation of £88 7m (2013 — £81 9m) by the
weighted average number of ordinary sharas 1n 1ssue dunng the year of 58,434,010 (2013 - 59,434,010)

7 Fixed assets — Intangible assets

Goocwil Jrademark Total
£m £m £m

Cost or valuation
At 1st February 2013 - 06 086
Capital expenditure 07 - Q7
Drisposals - - -
At 31st January 2014 07 06 1.3
Amortisation
At 1st February 2013 - 01 01
Charge for the year - - -
Disposals - - -
At 31st January 2014 - 01 0.1
Net bock value
At 31st January 2014 07 05 1.2
At 1st February 2013 - 05 a5

The trademark relates to the Clarks brand name in Brazil
On 12th August 2013 C&J Clark {Holdings) Limited acquired 100% of the share capital of EFA Ticaret ve Pazarlama A S,

a company incorporated in Turkey The acquisition resulted in goodwill of £0 7m being recognised in the Group accounts
There wera no far value adjustments to book values on acquisition
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8 Fixed assets — Tangible assets

a) Summary

Land and Land and Land and

bulldings bulldings Long buiidings Short Plant and

- B =
Cost or valuation
At 1st February 2013 914 o8 54 3 367 9 514 4
Exchange rate adjustments (16 - 20 (5 4) {9 Q)
Capital expenditure 22 21 88 569 680
Reclassification (7 4} - - 74 -
Disposals - - (1 6) (12 8 (14 4}
At 31st January 2014 846 29 575 1140 5590
Depreciation
At 1st February 2013 91 01 280 192 5 2287
Exchange rate adjustments 01 - 09 20 B0
Charge for the year 13 01 55 285 354
Imparrment - - - - -
Reclassification 04 - - 04 -
Disposals - - (15 (10 9) (12 4)
At 3tst January 2014 88 02 311 2085 2497
Net book value
At 31st January 2014 747 27 26 4 2055 309 3
At 1st February 2013 823 07 26 3 1754 2847

b} Valuation of land and bulldings

In accordance with the transiional provisions of FRS 15, freshold and long leasehold land and buldings are shown at valuation on
adopbion of FRS 15 and will not be updated The gross book value of freehold land and buildings iIncludes £20 3m (2013 - £20 3m)
of land which 18 not depreciated

N& comparative value of the land and builldings at histoncal cost 1s provided as there 1s no materal difference in valuation

c) Leased assets
Plant and equipment includes leased assets with a net book value of £nil (2013 — £nil)

61




NOTES TO THE financial statements CONTINUED

9 Fixed assets - investments

a) Group
Usted Unsted
imestments Investments Tatal
£m £m Em
Net book values at 1st February 2013 22 01 23
Exchange rate adustments {0 1) - (OR)!
Additions - - -
Disposals (0 5) - 05
Net book values at 31st January 2014 16 01 17
b} Company
Shares tn Shares in
subsidiary subsidary
undertakings undertakings
2014 2013
£m £m
Net book values at 1st February 2013 788 785
Addition/increase in net assets 03 03
Disposals - -
Net book values at 31st January 2014 791 788
10 Stock
2014 2013
£m £m
Finished goods and goods held for resale 417 2 3755
417 2 3755
11 Deblors
Group Group Company Company
2014 2013 204 2013
£m £m £m ¢
Trade debtors 1202 1371 12 17
Amounts owed by Group undertakings - - 466 8 3852
Amounts owed by Joint Venture undertakings 27 14 - -
Other debtors 70 59 - -
Prepayments and accrued Income 308 306 - -
Amounts faling due within one year 1607 1750 468 0 386 9
Trade debtors falling due after more than one year 05 01 - -
Other debtors faling due after more than one year 06 03 - -
Amounts falling due after more than one year 11 04 - -
1618 1754 466 0 3869
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12 Creditors — amounts falling due within one year

Group Group Company Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
£m £m £m £
Bank loans and overdrafts 490 57 4 - -
Trade creditors 1324 126 3 - -
Amounts owed to other Group undertakings - - 344 9 2977
Current taxation 58 42 - -
Social secunty 47 37 - -
Other creditors 17 4 118 01 -
Accruals and deferred income 502 586 - 01
2595 2630 3450 297 8
13 Creditors — amounts falling due after more than one year
Group Group Company Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
£m £m £m £
Long-term loans 724 66 4 724 66 4
Other creditors 71 154 - -
795 818 724 66 4
Amounts falling due between
one and two years - _ _ _
two and five years 741 789 724 B6 4
after five years 54 29 - -
795 818 724 66 4
14 Provisions for llabilities
At 1st February Exchange rate Provided At 31st January
2013 adjustment n year Utiised 2014
£m £m £m £m £m
Long-term Incentive Plan 53 - 16 (15) 54
Clarks Companies North America Incentive Plan 77 03) 05) 5 6) 13
Dilapdation provision 09 - a4 ©4) 09
Onerous lease provision 01 - - {01) -
Other 05 - 01 02) 04
145 {03 16 (7 8) 80
Deferred taxation (see note 15) 150 0 4) 48 - 194
' 2905 07 64 {7 8) 27 4
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NOTES TO THE fInancial statements CONTINUED

15 Deferred Taxation

Group Group

2014 2013

£m £

Accelerated capital allowances 226 197

Holdover relief - C1
Liquidation of LIFC inventory reserves In North America and Japan 66 48
QOverseas trading losses (28) ©9
Short-term timing differences (7 0) 87
, 194 150
Group

€m

Provision at 1st February 2013 150
Exchange rate adjustment 04)
Deferred taxation charge in the profit and loss account for the year {see note 4(a)) 48
, Provision at 31st January 2014 194,

Deferred tax assets of £7 6m {2013 — £9 3m} have not been provided for on the basis that the Directors do not assess them
as being recoverable In the foreseeable future The components of the unprovided deferred tax asset are unutiised German and
Austraban losses

16 Share capital

Issued and Issued anc

fully paid fully pald

2014 2013

£m £m

Ordinary shares of £1 each 594 594
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17 Reserves

Share premium  Capial redemnption Proft and loss Profit and loss

Gy macompeny T rop o Gormpany

£m £m £m £m £m

At 31st January 2013 08 181 15 1 3778 27 9
Currency translation adjustments {net of corporation tax} - - - (14 Q) -
Profit for the year - - - 887 704
Actuanal loss on pension scheme - - - (16 6) -
Associated deferred tax on actuanal gain - - - ao -
Effect of change In tax rate on deferred tax asset in pensicn labilty - - - (2 4) -
Share-based payment - - - a3 03
Dividends paid - - - (24 4) 24 4)
At 31st January 2014 08 181 151 124 742

The merger reserve of £15 1m (2013 — £15 1m} anses from the adoption of merger accounting n the year ended 31st January 1998
In relation to the Group reconstruction which followed the demerger of the Factory Outist Centres The capital redemption reserve
was onginally created in 20083 as a result of the ordinary share buy back

The prefit for the year dealt within the profit and less account of the Company amounts to £70 4m (2013 — loss of £0 2m}

The cumulative total of goodwill written off against Group profit and loss account reserves in respect of acquisitions prior to the
1st February 1988, when FRS 10 'Goodwill and Intangible Assets’ was adopted, amounts to £21m (2013 — £2 1m) This relates
10 acquisttions since 1st February 1885 as information pnor to this date 1s not avallable

18 Financial commitments

Commitments by the Group for capital expenditure not provided in the financial statements are

2014 2013

£m £m

Contracted but not provided for 168 261
Annual commitments by the Group 1n respect of non-cancellable operating leases are

Land and Lend and Plant and Plant and

Buildings buldings equipment equpment

2014 2013 2014 2013

£m £m £m £m

Expinng within one year 64 72 02 02

Expinng between two and five years 377 319 11 12

Expinng after five years 485 506 - -

926 897 13 14
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NOTES TO THE f1nancial statements CONTINUED

19 Financial nstruments and risk management

The Group's treasury management policies are outhned in the Financial Review on pages 20 to 23

a) Currency profile and interest rates

Gross Cash at bank Net (cash) Gross Cash al bank Het {cash)
bomrowings and in hand Moorrowngs borrowings and n hand foorovwngs
g “n o =W =
Currency

Sterling 03 (10 5) (102) 03 (137} (13 4)
US dollar 381 (19 0) 201 52 (51 0} (45 8}
Euro - (10 3) (10 3) 410 (7 O} 340
Other 96 (219 (123) 109 (12 8) {1 9}
490 (617 (127) 57 4 (84 5) (27 1)

Borrowings for hedging purposes
Steding 724 - 724 66 4 - 66 4
US Dollar - - - - - -
724 - 724 66 4 - 664
1214 (61 7) 597 123 8 (84 95 393

The Group's cash deposits compnse deposits placed on money markets at call and overmight rates The Group's entire net

borrowing faciiies amounting to £251 1m (2013 - £233 9m) are availlable at floating rates These include the Revolving Credit Facility
of £200 Om {2013 — £200 Om) and overdraft facilities in the UK and overseas totaling £51 1m (2013 - £33 9m) Under the Revolving
Credit Facility interest rates are based upon LIBOR, fixed depending on the tenor of the loan The interest rates on overdralt facilities
in the UK are based on the UK base rate for sterling borrowings and the relevant LIBOR rate for currency borrowings The interest
rates on short term facilities in the USA and Japan are based on local base rates Bank borrowings are secured by a floating charge
over the assets of the Group

Included n stering borrowings for hedging purposes 1s £51 4m (2013 — £51 4m} borowed at floating rates, which by the use of a
cross-currency nterest rate swap has created a synthetic US dollar fixed interest habiity of $80 Om (2013 — $80 Om) The sterling
asset and US dollar hability created by this swap have been disclosed net in both Group and Company accounts due to a legal nght
of set off

Exchange losses on foreign currency borrowings less deposits werg £0 5m (2013 — gain £0 6m} including a gain of £nil
(2013 ~ £nil) relating to exchange movements on loans providing a hedge to offset curency movements ansing on retranslation

of overseas subsichares

The matunty of the Group's gross borrowings at 31st January was as follows

2014 2013

em &

In one year or less or on demand 490 57 4
In more than one year but not more than two years - -
In more than two years but not more than five years 72.4 66 4
121 4 1238
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19 Financial instruments and nsk management continued

At 31st January the Group had the following undrawn net committed borrowings facilibies available

2014 2013

£m £m

Expiring m one year 492 24 2
Expiring in more than one year but not more than two years 1276 133 6
: 1768 187 8

b) Currency exposures, far values and hedges
The Group has used foreign currency contracts to cover the currency exposures on expected cash flows up to two years forward

The Group does not engage in foraign currency speculation but covers 1its future trading requirements through forward exchange
contracts and options By necessity, this results in some forward currency commutments at the year end which have been entered
Into at exchange rates Iikely to be relevant at the contract date Due to short-term fluctuations in exchange rates, the year end rates
will always be different from contract rates

As at 31st January 2014, the foreign currency forward contracts held a theorstical far value loss of £3 9m (2013 —gain £2 tm)

The farr value loss on options at 31st January 2014 was £12 4m (2013 - gain £1 7m) One hundred and eighty-five of the two
hundred and seventy-two contracts held will mature during the year ended 31st January 2015 The sterling value of the deals held s
£718 6m (2013 - £447 Om} One hundred and thirty-seven ¢f the one hundred and forty-eight contracts held at 31st January 2013
have matured and have been recognised in the profit and loss account

The farr value loss for the Group and Company on the cross-currency Interest rate swap used to create the synthetic loan
at 31st January 2014 was £1 7m
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NOTES TO THE fInancial statements CONTINUED

20 Retrement Benefits

The Group operates two defined benefit schemes in the UK, the C&J Clark Pension Fund (the Fund)} and the Clarks Flexible Pension
Scheme (the Scheme) A full actuanal valuation of the Fund was carned out at 5th Apnl 2011 and an actuanal report of the Scheme
was carned out at 5th Apnl 2012 These were updated to 31st January 2014 by a qualfied ndependent actuary The Group
operates a single defined benefit scheme in the USA, the C&J Clark Company Pension Plan {the Plan) A full actuanal valuation

of the Plan was camed out at 1st January 2013 and updated to 31st January 2014 by a qualfied independent actuary

Group Group
& g5
Change in benefit obligation for defined benefit sections
Benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 966 4 8102
Current service cost 127 123
Interest cost 44 4 420
Plan participants’ contnbutions 08 05
Past service costs - -
Actuanal gains 16 3 46 8
Curtaiments - (O]
Benefits paid 41 7) 44 7)
Exchange rate adjustment on US scheme (4 0) 01
. Benefit obhgation at the end of the year 994.9 966 4
Analysis of benefit obligation for defined benefit sections
Plans that are wholly or partly funded 994 6 966 1
Plans thal are wholly unfunded 03 03
Total 994 9 966 4
Change In plan assets for defined benefit sections
Farr value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 859.8 800 1
Expected return on plan assets 394 363
Actuanal gams 03 329
Transfer from defined contnbution section of the Fund - -
Employer contnbution 355 349
Member contributions 08 05
Benefits paid 417 44 7)
Exchange rate adjustment on US scheme (3 2) 02
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 890.3 8598
Funded status (104 6) (106 6)
Unrecognised past serice cost (benefit) - -
Net amount recognised (104 6) {106 6)

In addition, the value of the assets and liabilities held in the defined contnbution sectton of the UK Fund amounted to £25 9m as at
31st January 2014 (2013 — £24 5m) and the value of assets and habiities held in the defined contribution section of the UK Scheme
amounted to £ 9m as at 31st January 2014 (2013 - £7 Om} Defined contnbution schemes in the US held assets of £40 Om as at

31st January 2014 (2013 - £35 Om})
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20 Retirement Benefits continued

Group Grup
“om =
Components of penston cost
Current service cost — defined benefit scheme 127 123
Contnbution — defined contribution scheme 12 13
Interest cost 44 4 420
Expected return on plan assets (39 4) (36 3)
Effect of curtatments - (¢ 4a)
'Total pension cost recognised in the Profit and Loss Account 189 189
Actuanal losses mmediataly recogrused 166 18
Total pension cost recognised in the Statement of Total Recognised Gams and Losses 166 138
Cumulative amount of actuanal tosses immediately recogmised since 1st February 2005 103 4 868
Group Group
o e
Movement in deficit duning the year
Deficit in the scheme at the beginning of the year (106 6) (110 1)
Current service cost (127 (12 3}
Contnbutions 355 U9
Past service costs/curtaiments - 04
Net interest cost (50) & 7)
Actuanal 10ss (16 6) (13 7)
Exchange rate adjustment on US scheme 08 0 1)
Deficit tn the scheme at the end of the year {104.6) (106 €)
Associated deferred tax asset
Deferred tax asset at the beginning of the year 28.5 30 8
Deferred tax charge on pension contnbutions in excess of current year pension charge (4 4) 4 8)
Effective change n tax rate (24) (1.6)
Movements on actuanal l0ss 30 37
Exchange rate adjustment on US scheme (0 5) 0.2
Deferred tax asset at the end of the year 242 28.5
Net pension iabilty at the beginning of the year (78 1) {79.3)
Net pensson hability at the end of the year (80 4) (V8 1)
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NOTES TO THE 11nancial statements CONTINUED

20 Retrement Benefits continued

Plan assets
The weighted average asset allocations at the year end were as follows
UK UK MNorth Amenca North Amenca
plan assets plan assets plan assseis plan assets
2014 2013 2014 2013
Asset category
Equites 358 42% 38 66% 30 90% 32 70%
Bonds 59 76% 60 36% 69 10% 67 30%
Cash 082% 098% - -

100 00% 100 00% 100 00% 100 00%

Amounts included in the fair value of assets for
Financial instruments - - - -

Property occupied or other assets used - - - _

To develop the expected long-term rate of return on assets assumption, the Group considered the current level of expected returns
on nsk free Investments (pnmarily government bonds), the histoncal level of the nsk premium associated with the other asset classes
in which the portfolio 1s invested, the expectation for future returns of each asset class and the expected expenses of operating the
schemes The expected return for each asset class was then weighted based on the target asset allocation to develop the expected
Iong-term rate of return on assets assumption for the portfolio This resulted in the selection of the 4 3% assumption for the year
ended 31st January 2014 (2013 - 4 44%) for the UK scheme and 6 2% for the US scheme (2013 - 6 20%)

Group Group
2014 2013
£m £m
Actual return on plan assets 391 69 2
UK UK North Amenca North Amenca
2014 2013 2014 2013
Weighted average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations
Discount rate 4 35% 4 70% 4 50% 4 25%
Rate of increase In salares Senicr Executives 5 40% 550% 4 00% 4 00%
Others 4 90% 5 00% 4 00% 4 00%
Rate of ncrease In pensions 1N payment Fund 330% 3 50% n/a n/a
Scheme 210% 2 20% n/a n/a
Rate of increase N penstons in deferment 240% 2 70% n/a n/a
Inflation assumption 3 30% 3 50% 2 50% 2 50%
Weighted average assumptions used to determine net pension cost
for the year end
Discount rate 4 70% 4 70% 4 25% 4 50%
Expected long-term return on plan assets 4 30% 4 44% 6 20% 6 20%
Rate of increase in salanes Senior Executives 5 50% 510% 4 00% 4 00%
Others 5 00% 4 60% 4 00% 4 00%
Rate of ncrease in pensions In payment Fund 3 50% 3 10% n/a n/a
Scheme 2 20% 2 00% n/a n/a
Rate of increase in pensions n deferment 210% 210% n/a n/a
Inflation assumption 3 50% 3 10% 2 50% 2 50%
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20 Retrement Benefits continued

UK UK North Amenca North Amenca
2014 2013 2014 2013
Waeighted average life expectancy for mortality tables used
to determine benefit obligations
Member age 65 (current Iife expectancy) Male 232 232 196 19 6
Female 237 237 213 213
Member age 45 (Iife expectancy at age 65) Male 250 249 196 19 6
Female 252 252 213 213
Five year history
znlﬁ zolfs( zo'}]g 20% zoLEHS
£m £m £m £m ©m
Benefit obligation at the end of the year {903 8) (870 5) 822 6} (761 O} (710 Q)
Far value of plan assets at the end of the year 8175 7904 738 8 654 9 590 0
Deficit in the scheme (86 3) {80 1) {83 8} (106 1) (120 Q)
Related deferred tax asset 173 184 210 286 33.6
Net pension hability (69 0) (61 7) B2 8} (77 5) (86.4)
North Amenca North America North Amenca North America North Amenca
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
£m £m €m £m £m
Benefit obligation at the end of the year (91 1) 959 87 6} (86 3} (60.5)
Farr value of plan assets at the end of the year 728 69 4 613 493 38.4
Deficit in the scheme (18 3) (26 5) 26 3} (17 Oy (22 1)
Related deferred tax asset 69 101 98 63 83
Net pension hatihity (11 4) (16 4) (16 5) {10 7) (13 8}
Group Group Group Group CGroup
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
£m £m £m £m om
Benefit oblgation at the end of the year (994 9) (966 4) @02 (827 3) (770 5}
Fair value of plan asssts at the end of the year 8903 8598 8001 704 2 628 4
Defictt in the scheme (104 6} (106 6) (110 1) (123 1) (142 1}
Related deferred tax asset 242 285 308 349 41 9
Net penston hiability {80 4) (78 1) (79 3) (B8 2) {100.2)
Actual return less expscted return on scheme assets (03) 329 656 350 {131.0}
Percentage of year-end scheme assets (0 0%) 38% 82% 50% (20 895}
Expenence (losses)/gains ansing on scheme habiliies (16 4) (467) 65 9) {42 3) 5.5
Percentage of year-end scheme liabilities (1 6%) {4 8%) (7 2%) (5 1%) 07%

Contributions

Under the current schedule of contributions, the Group expects to make contributions towards pension defioits of £20m to the
UK schemes and $10m to the US schemes n the year ended 31st January 2015
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NOTES TO THE fInancial statements CONTINUED

21 Related party transactions

Control

The Group holding company 1s C&J Clark Limited As indicated in the Director’s report on pages 44 to 45, family members hold
84 1% of the Company's ordinary shares

Transactions with directors and officers
There were no transactions with directors and officers dunng the year apart from those included in the remuneration report
on pages 36 to 39

Transactions with subsidianes and joint venture

The Group has taken advaniage of the exemptions m FRS 8 *‘Related Party Transactions’ n respect of ransactions with
wholly-owned subsidianes Therefore, transactions between the Company and its subsichanes, which ars related parties,

have been elimmated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note Transactions between the Group and its joint venture
are disclosed below

Sales to Salkes to Amounts owed Amounts owed Injection of Injection of
related retated by related by related equity equity
partias parties partles parties funding tuncing

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
£m £m £m £m fm £m
Joint Venture 34 46 27 14 - 02

Sales to related parties consist of footwear

22 Reconailliahon of operabing profit tems to operating cash flows

2014 2013

£m £m

Operating profit before exceptional tems 1284 122 3
Depreciation and impainments 354 306
Increase in stocks (50 6) (24 5)
Decrease/(increase) in debtors 79 (23 8}
Increase in creditors 03 319
Decrease n provisions (61) (57}
Exchange gains on currency bank accounts {0 5) 0 6}
Pension deficit funding {26 2) (26 2)
Difference between pension charge and cash contnbutions 39 32
Net cash inflow from operating activities 925 107 2
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23 Analysis of cash flows for headings netted in the Group cash flow statement

204 2013
£m m
a) Beturns on investments and semicing of finance
Interest received 04 03
Interest paid (2 3) (29)
 Net cash outflow for returns on investments and servicing of finance (19) 2 2)
b} Capital expenditure and financial nvestment
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (64 3) (95 7)
Sale of tangible fixed assets 01 18
Additions to investments 02) O 4)
Investment in joint venture undertaking - {02}
Net cash outflow for capital expenditure and financial investment {64 4) {94 5)
2014 2013
£m £m
c) Financing
Increase/{Decrease) In long-term bank loans 60 4 1)
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from financing 60 4 1)
24 Analysis of net cash
A4 st February Translation At 318t January
2013 Cash flow differences 2014
£m £m tm £m
Cash at bank and in hand 845 (21 5) {13 617
Bank overdrafts {57 4) 76 08 (49 0)
271 (139) {0 5) 127
Bank loans - - - -
Long-term loans (66 4) (6 0) - (72 4)
(39 3) (19 9} {0 5) (597)
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¢ & j clark limited Anp suBSIDIARIES

The following subsidianes are those contnbuting most significantly to the profits and the assets of the Group and 1s not a complete

list of all subsidianes All are wholly-owned and are engaged in the shoe trade

Counvtry of Orcdinary
Incorporation shares %
Subsidianes
C&J Clark International Limited {trading as Clarks international) England £ each 100
Clarks Amencas Inc USA US$each 100
Clarks Shoes Vertrigbs GmbH Germnany € each 100
Clarks Shoes Benelux BV Holland € each 100
Clarks Japan Company bimited Japan ¥ each 100
C&J Clark China Trading Co Limited China  CNY¥ each 100
Country of Ordinary
incorporation shares %
Joint Ventures
Clarks Future Footwear Limited India  RUP each 50
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group financial RECORD

2014 2013 2012 201 2010

Notes £m £m £m £m £m
Group trading results for the year ended
31st January
Group turnover 1,541 0 1,460 6 1,398 1 1,2813 1,173 5
Turnover from continuing activities 1 1,546 6 1,463 9 1,399 7 1,281 3 1,173 5
Profit before interest, exceptional tems
and Jont Venture 128 4 1223 1158 1109 97 4
Exceptional items before taxation - - 02 51 15
Profit before interest and after exceptional items 1278 1216 1155 1159 989
Net interest (8 0} (80} (9 4) 7 2) (13 8)
Profit before tax and after exceptional items 1198 1136 106 1 1087 851
Profit after tax 887 819 775 771 608
Group financial position at 31st January
Capitat employed 6656 602 9 518 2 4393 3531
Net borrowings/(cash) (597) 393) (@ 5) (18 6) 774
Equity shareholders' funds 5058 4712 424 2 3669 322 5
Ratios
Return on sales 2 83% 8 4% 83% B87% 8 3%
Return on capital employed 3 19 3% 20 3% 22 3% 25 2% 27 6%
Net assets per orcinary share 4 £8 51 £7 93 £7 14 £6 16 £5 41
Net borrowings/equity 11 8% 83% 22% (5 1%) (24 0%)
Basic earnings per ordinary share 5 149 3p 137 8p 130 5p 129 6p 101 Bp
Basic earnings per ordinary share before
exceptional tems 149 3p 137 8p 130 2p 121 1p 98 3p
Dwidends paid dunng the year per ordinary share 6 41 1p 37 5p 36 5p 40 0p 27 5p
Dividend cover 7 36 37 36 32 37
interest cover 8 160 152 123 161 72

[

Tumower from continuing operations ncludes 100% of the tumover in the Indan Jont Venture

Lo B & I A I

accordance with FRS 21 Events after tha Balance Sheet date’
7 Dradend caver 1s profit after tax draded by dedands pad
8 Intarest cover 15 the profit before intarest dradad by net interast
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Return on sales 1s the profit before nterest and exceptional tems expressed as a percentage of turnover from continuing actrties

Retum on capital employed s the profit before interest and exceptional items expressed as a percentage of capital employed at the year end
Net assets per ordinary share s the amount of the equity shareholders’ funds dwded by the number of ordinary shares i Issue

Basic eamings per ordinary share have been calculated as per note 6 in the notes to the financial statements

Dmadends paid dunng the year per ardinary share reflect the actual payments made dunng the year rather than the dwdenc declared in respect of the year in




facts AT YOUR FINGERTIPS

2014
Asla

UK & ROI Americas Europe Paciflc Group
Tumover {(Emilkons) 645 626 145 125 1,541
Employees (number at year-end)’ 11,480 3,659 167 482 15,788
Parrs sold (milons} 20.7 231 44 43 525
Shops
Clarks 361 198 5 5 569
Concessions 58 - - 29 87
Factory shopping outlets 41 114 10 8 173
Bostoman - 10 - - 10
Total owned shops 480 322 15 42 839
Franchise stores 111 - - - 111
International Clarks shops? - 12 167 227 406
Total shops 571 334 182 269 1,356°
2013

Asia

UK & ROI Americas Europe Pacific Group
Turnover (Emillions}) 624 588 144 105 1,461
Employees (number at year-end)’ 12,037 3,437 155 259 15,888
Pairs sold (millions) 207 211 45 34 197
Shops
Clarks 367 177 5 - 549
Concessions 61 - - - 61
Factory shopping outlets 40 108 7 - 155
Bostonian - 13 - - 13
Total owned shops 468 298 12 - 778
Franchise stores 112 - - - 112
International Clarks shops? - 10 174 184 368
Total shops 580 308 186 184 1,258

Comparatwves In the table above have been restated to reflect the new regional structure

Pauis sold in both of the above tables represent footwear sales in previous years this has also included sales of handbags and accessones

1 Including part tme employees

2 Monobranded partnership stores using the ‘global’ shopfit farmat

Thts report was pnnted on paper which 1s made of 50% recycled fibre and 50% virgin wood fibre from sustainable sources

This matenal can be disposed of by recycling

76




